EXPERIMENTAL INVESTIGATION OF THE RATE OF PENETRATION OF VIBRATION ASSISTED ROTARY DRILLING

HENG LI







EXPERIMENTAL INVESTIGATION OF THE RATE OF PENETRATION OF VIBRATION ASSISTED ROTARY DRILLING

By

C Heng Li

A thesis submitted to School of Graduate Studies in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the degree of

Master of Engineering

January, 2011

Faculty of Engineering and Applied Science Memorial University of Newfoundland

St. John's, Newfoundland

Abstract

A conceptual definition technology colind Vibration Assister Restry DiMing VARD) was experimentally reverged in this web, Similar definition technologies and their maintaines were reviewed during this investigation. A kidowatory experimental definition systems was developed. This system is capable of preveding behaviour with adjustible amplitudes areas the bits. Relationship between the trengted on the (VORD) and Raw of Promotion (ROOT), and the effect of definition fluids were important of the effects of the context of the system and trengted on the context of the effects of vibrations with variation amplitudes new term on context. The effects of vibrations with variation amplitudes new context of WORD-ROF relationship were studied and discussion.

Acknowledgement

I work like to repress my interest approximation and respects to Dr. Stephen Britt and Kana Manasaway for the respervision. I work will have its the the Reif Reif Aromit, de manager of the VADD research project for the continuous support. I deeply approxime for works done by the work turn molents Caulors, Schulzer Mellulg and Joh Broher, for their gare dolotions line the development of the VADD experimental facility. Also finales to the auxiations: them in the basistants: Showe Organ and Mari Cains. Their support multi de VADD experimental facility provides the states with the interpret of horizontal protocols and the states of the development. The support multi development and the Marians.

Table of Contents

Abstract	i
Acknowledgement	
List of Tables	vii
List of Figures	viii
List of Symbols	xi
Chapter 1 Introduction	1
1.1 Organization of the thesis	2
1.2 Original Contribution	4
Chapter 2 Literature Review	5
2.1 Rotary Drilling Systems	5
2.2 Drilling Cost Analysis	7
2.3 Factors Affecting the ROP in a Rotary Drilling System	8
2.3.1 Drill Bit	8
2.3.2 Operation Parameters	10
2.3.3 Rock Properties	12
2.4 Drilling with Vibrations	15
2.5 Percussive Hammer Drilling	16
2.6 Vibration Assisted Rotary Drilling	24
2.6.1 Resonant Sonic Drilling	24
2.6.2 Surface Mechanical Vibrator and Offshore Sampler	27

2.6.3 Electro-Magnetostriction Vibratory Drill	29
Chapter 3 Experimental Setup	36
3.1 Introduction	36
3.2 Vibration Velocity Source	36
3.3 Rotary Drill System	37
3.4 Modifications to the laboratory VARD testing system	39
3.4.1 WOB System	39
3.4.2 Installation and Modification of the Vibration Table	43
3.4.3 Environmental Protection	44
3.4.4 Modification and Coupling for the Full Face Bit Experiments	45
3.5 DAQ- System	46
3.5.1 NI DAQ-System	46
3.5.2 Micro Strain Wireless DAQ-system	47
3.6 Sensors	47
3.6.1 LVDT	47
3.6.2 Load Cell	50
3.6.3 Rotary Encoder	54
3.7 Drilling System Capacities	59
3.7.1 Suspended Weight to Static WOB Conversion	59
3.7.2 Study of the Vibration Displacement Amplitude	61
3.7.3 Study of the Vibration Force Variation Amplitude	65

Chapter 4 VARD Experiments on Coring Bit	69
4.1 Objective	69
4.2 Verification of VARD Technology	69
4.3 Sample Preparation	70
4.4 300RPM Coring Bit VARD Test	71
4.4.1 Procedure	71
4.4.2 Experiment Result	72
4.5 600RPM Coring bit VARD Test	76
4.5.1 Procedure	76
4.5.2 Experiment Results	77
Chapter 5 Investigation of the Effect of the Drilling Fluid on Drilling Performance	82
5.1 Introduction	82
5.2 Experimental Setup for the Coring Bit Drilling Fluid Study	85
5.3 Drilling Fluid Flow Investigation Based on Coring Bit Rotary Drilling Experin	nents
	87
Chapter 6 Full Face VARD Experiments	92
6.1 Preparation of the Sample	93
6.2 Conditioning of the Full Face Bit	94
6.3 Conventional Rotary Fall Face Bit Experiment	98
6.4 Full Face Bit VARD Experiment	102

Chapter 7 Conclusion and Discussion	112
7.1 Conclusions	112
7.2 Discussions to the future work	114
Reference	116
Appendix A: Displacement amplitude measured by data without drilling	119
Appendix B: Force amplitude recorded by load cell without drilling	127
Appendix C: Displacement amplitude measured by data while drilling	136
Appendix D: Calculation of the Pump Off Force During a Drill Off Test	146

List of Tables

Table 3.1 Drilling data during the test run with the constant WOB system	41
Table 4.1 VARD experimental coring bit drilling data with 300RPM rotary speed	75
Table 4.2 VARD experimental coring bit drilling data with 600RPM rotary speed	78
Table 5.1 Drilling data and drilling fluid readings during the flow investigation	87
Table 6.1 Data for the bit conditioning under 2 kg WOB	96
Table 6.2 Drilling data of the full face bit conventional rotary drilling	101
Table 6.3 Drilling data of the full face bit VARD experiments	106

List of Figures

Fig. 2.1 Land based drill rig (from www.howstuffsworks.com)	6
Fig. 2.2 Drill bits for oil and gas drilling operations	9
Fig. 2.3 WOB-ROP plot obtained from the experiment verifying the Maurer'	8
model	11
Fig. 2.4 Rotary speed- ROP with and without confining pressure (from	
Cunningham, 1960)	12
Fig. 2.5 Rock properties listed with their weight of influence to the ROP	
(Hoscinie, 2009)	13
Fig. 2.6 Relationship between hardness and specific disintegration (specific	
energy) (Gstaider and Raynal, 1996)	14
Fig. 2.7 Sketch of down hole percussive air hammer (Whitely, 1986)	17
Fig. 2.8 Tensile failure require less energy explained by Mohr-Coulomb fail	are
criterion with tension cutoff	19
Fig. 2.9 Drill history comparison between air percussive hammer and rotary	drill
	20
Jumping Pound area (left) and Clearwater (right) (Finger, 1984)	20
Fig. 2.10 Real-Time drilling data showing WOB affecting the instantaneous	
ROP (Lagreca, 2002)	22
Fig. 2.11 WOB-ROP envelope showing the hammer supply pressure plays a	
dominant role (Finner, 1984)	24

Fig. 2.12 Sonic Drilling instrumentation and technology (From Sonic Samp	
Drilling Itd)	25
Fig. 2.13 Surface mechanical vibrator (right: lower section; left: upper section	n)
(Eskin et al., 1995)	29
Fig. 2.14 Sketch of offshore sampler with unbalanced mass vibration generat	or
(from Eskin, et al., 1995)	29
Fig.2.15 Magnetostriction based vibration rotary drilling system (Wise et al.,	
1958)	30
Fig. 2.16 MBS-108 vibration unit (Eskin et al., 1995)	33
Fig. 2.17 MVS-90 vibrator unit (Eskin et al., 1995)	35
Fig. 3.1 Syntron VP-51 shaker table	37
Fig. 3.2 Millwaukee motor and initial drill rig setup	38
Fig. 3.3 Initial design of the side wheel providing constant WOB with two le	vels
of diameters	40
Fig. 3.4 Drill rig installed with a bike wheel to provide constant WOB	41
Fig. 3.5 WOB-ROP curve during the test run of modification to provide con-	tant
WOB	42
Fig. 3.6 Brackets design and final product to hold the sample	44
Fig. 3.8 GHSA 750-250 LVDT mounted on VARD setup (left) and DLD-V	
signal conditioner (right)	49
Fig. 3.9 Calibration curve of the GHSA 750-250 LVDT in its linear range	50
Fig. 3.10 Inner structure of pancake load cell	51
(left; from Pierson; right: from Honeywell)	51

Fig. 3.11 Full bridge strain gauges load cell (from allaboutcircuits.com)	52
Fig.3.12 Load cell and its mounting unit	53
(left: with the hosing and node and plastic housing; right: initial status when	the
coupling units were finished and assembled)	53
Fig.3.13 Calibration curve of load cell with wireless transmitter	54
Fig. 3.14 Principle of Quadrature rotary encoder (From National Instruments) 55
Fig. 3.15 Nikon RXA rotary encoder mounted on the VARD drill rig	56
Fig. 3.16 Comparisons of the rotary encoder signal during 'good runs' (left) a	ind
runs with sliding issues (right) under low level of vibration VARD drilling	58
Fig. 3.17 Suspended weight to WOB conversion from the scale test	60
Fig. 3.18 Suspended weight to WOB conversion resulted from the load cell	61
Fig. 3.19 Vibration amplitude measured by LVDT with increasing levels of	
shaker control settings without drilling	63
Fig. 3.20 Vibration amplitude at increasing WOB under multiple levels of	
shaker control settings	64
Fig. 3.21 3-D plot of Displacement amplitude dependent to static WOB and	
shaker control settings	65
Fig. 3.22 Force variation amplitude with changing WOB under various level	of
shaker control settings	67
Fig. 3.23 Mean value of thrust force measured by load cell	67
Fig. 4.1 Verification test showing the ROP increment brought by the VARD	
drilling	70
For 4.2 VARD susembly in the condition for the coring drilling experiments.	71

Fig. 4.3 WOB- ROP plot at 300 RPM with and without vibrations	74
Fig. 4.4 Shaker control setting-ROP plot at 45.65kg WOB, started with zero	(no)
vibration	76
Fig. 4.5 WOB- ROP plot at 600 RPM with and without vibrations	79
Fig. 4.6 Example of other coring bit drilling experiments at high RPM for 3	
different diamond coring bit types (from Ersoy and Waller, 1995)	80
Fig. 5.1 Pump off mechanism comparison of laboratory core drilling and fie	6d
full face bit drilling	85
Fig. 5.2 Flow meter and pressure gauge installed on the VARD experimental	d
facility	86
Fig. 5.3 Returned flow to the surface with increasing flow rate from 1 US gr	pen
to 6 US gpm	89
Fig. 5.3 Rate of penetration as a function of flow rate under 61.6 kg WOB	90
Fig. 5.4 Rate of penetration as a function of actual WOB	91
Fig. 6.1 Photo of the AWJ full face bit purchased from Boartlongyear inc.	93
Fig.6.2 ROP variation with accumulated travel during conditioning	96
Fig. 6.3 Bit face before (upper) and after (lower) conditioning	97
Fig. 6.4 Actual drilling data distribution with increasing WOB	106
Fig. 6.5 Averaged conventional drilling data with increasing WOB	107
Fig. 6.6 Vibration amplitude measured by the LVDT during the VARD full	face
bit experiment	107
Fig. 6.7 3-D Plot of the shaker amplitude during VARD test	108

хi

Fig. 6.8 VARD full face experiment result-ROP as a function of WOB with	.h
multiple levels of vibrations	110
Fig. 6.9 VARD full face experiment result-ROP as a function of vibration	with
multiple levels of WOB	111
Fig. 6.10 3-D ROP surface as a function of static WOB and shaker control	
settings	112
Fig. 7.1 Comparison of the VARD rig in fall, 2008 (left) and August, 2010	

List of Symbols

Symbol	Description
Cr	Total cost
C_{W}	Variable cost
D	Drill bit diameter
D_{W}	Well depth
DTH	Down- The- Hole percussive hammer
r	Frequency of magnetostrictive vibratory drill
Fg	Pump off force
FDO	WOB monitored at surface at drill off point
Foe	WOB monitored at surface when bit is off bottom
Frank	Maximum impact force of magnetostrictive vibratory drill
К	Constant determined by empirical drilling data
N	Bit rotary speed
ΔP_B	Pressure drop across bit
Pos	Standpipe pressure when bit is off bottom
PDO	Standpipe pressure at drill of point
P ₈	Shkaer control setting position
ROP	Rate of penetration
RPI	Rock penetrability index
s	Rock uniaxial strength
T _{RL}	Flat line time (non-penetrating time)
TD	Drilling time (penetrating time)
MSe	Mechanical specific energy
UCS	Unconfined compressive strength
VARD	Vibration assisted rotary drilling
w	Weight on bit

xiii

Wo	Threshold weight on bit
WOB	Effective weight on bit accounted for pump off force
WOB _{static}	Static weight on bit mechanically stressed by drill system
An	Effective pump off area

Chapter 1

Introduction

Rate of penetration (ROP) is an important indicator of a drilling system performance, which is closely related to the overall operation cost in the modern drilling industry. Fast penetrating drill technologies have high demands in the oil and gas industry.

In the model adding industry, the protein its is aquired by submool 400 this discover, secondary last locations, our Wood materians, et e defining with two dimetry without All three effects are due based on the residing entry drilling system. Up to due, frewer investigations are due to have tachologies which proceed in EOD's fundamentally changing the drilling materians, adhaugh three are tachologies three bottom proved as postationally indicated and the second system of the system of the postational processing and any distribution of the system of the system transition have model that the higher model indicates and entry efficiency, and readsignificantly messare the EOP when difficus with hard necks. And entry then some in dilling without the solution without we related approximate human drill have higher models and materials and the second system of the theory that for the system of the system of the second system of the theory descent and the system of the system metal and drilling with hard each system of the system of the system metal drilling and the second system of the system of the system of the system metal and drilling without the system of the system of the system of the system of the drilling in the system of the system of the system of the system of the drilling in the system of th

One of the major issues of these technologies to be applied in the oil and gas industry is that the vibration energy has difficulties to transmit to the bottom hole; whereas the other problem is that high energy impacts could decrease the drill string stability. For these reasons, developing a new drilling system with moderate frequency and low amplitudes of vibrations based on the existing rotary systems deserves attention.

In the current thesis, a laboratory scale Vibration Assisted Rotary Drilling (VARD) experimental drill rig was established by the author. The effects of these mid-frequency, low amplitude vibrations on the rate of persentations were then experimentally investigned.

1.1 Organization of the thesis

In chapter 2, there will be a review of conventional land based off and gar entry abiling systems. Excess influencing the rate of perentration, such as weight to bit, retary speed, it by per, and reak perpendient will be diseased. These technologies have been found to have the personal to increase the rate of penetration throughout laboratory experiments and full transfer.

Chapter 3 will report the development of VADD 'Phase T experimental drift system and provide descriptions of the major components including an eleveric cereing drift is, a visionic table, and a an aspinistim system. Sensess meaned an thir system which monitors the acid heast factor, hit resets, this means, this including the system provides and also be included in this chapter. Mereover, the inversignment of the system properties such an 1 the surported weight to real weight to hit conversion, and of 1 interestors of shafter projects to be situation displacement and force amplitudes will be presented in this chapter.

VARD experiments based on coring bits will be reported in Chapter 4. These experiments were conducted under 2 different levels of neary speeds (200 and 600 RPM), with multiple levels of weight on this and vibration mechanical powers. Significant ROP improvements were revealed under relatively low WOB conditions. The levels of the vibration mechanical power have effects on the shape of the WOB-ROP curves.

Investigation of the delling finds flow rate will be reported in Chapter 3. This investigation was conducted to access the effect of delling fluids on the ROP. Concentional track priling experiments were actual out and arvanism. These conditions while other openting parameters were kept constant. The result showed that two effects, which were () the paragraf flows, and () behaves hale cleaning instruct with each other, which were () the paragraf flows, and () behaves hale cleaning instruct with each other, which were () the paragraf flows, and () behaves hale cleaning instruct with each other, and the flow rate waves comparison of the least 12-352 (Seg min the line response).

Full face bit VAID reprintments will be presented in Clapter 6. Remay quot and adving that flow rate wave kept number, whereas 3 breet of "instains mechanical poort wave subsystal instail 47.1 Stavin in it the comp VAID appendents. Compared to its comp bit reache, here appendents wave conclused under relatively har WOIDs, where the WOB-ROP cores is for flows summarian. The flow reaches, a better abstraction of the WOB-ROP cores is for flows summarian. The flow reaches, a better abstraction and produce effects brought by the vibration could be realized. The reach showed that the vibration mechanical power could bring a propertional increase is the ROP while the WOB was how reasons.

1.2 Original Contribution

Based an the observations during the blockmap VADD experiment, the virtuations with final drogency (at 60 Hz) are finad to have trought significant ROP imprevenues that adding with modern burgling on Bit (WDL). It is block of a blockmap more propertically justice and the start of the block of a blockmap more propertically justice and the ROP. The data visions also sharped at halps of the storage model with the start of the start of the start of the storage storage with WDL BOP databases. This is an earlier fundar point. This may result is solved the WDL BOP exacts, and result is an earlier fundar point. This may result is reduced to the block WDL point fundar to the storage storage with the storage of the reduced with operation maps when whitemism are introduced. However, the locat XDP without (the thoughed WDL) for final the block with of vibration.

Chapter 2

Literature Review

2.1 Rotary Drilling Systems

In the off and gas industry, defining webs in the early has much the underground off and gas reservoirs. Handbad or webs, may need to be defined during the exploration and a deformation of our elevation. In the moline fidding balancy, most of and gas webs are defined with a straty definition years, a definition of the strateging strates, marror years, and it in the strate of the fidding systems. Insiding system, remery years, and it in the horizon of the fidding strates, may need, and we defined the interaction of the fidding systems. Insiding system, remery years, and it is the horizon gas first fits every system, including system, remery years, and it is the h. The renergy system is powered by the gassmate at the surface by a fitsed entities in the h. The renergy system is powered by the gassmate at the surface by a fitsed entity and the marry gas of the strate system. The defit life has pressed on the block, contain strates by a fitser called the Walay on thit (WOR). This WOR, also called defit pressure, is a balance of web weight on the defit defined parts gas frequences and the total system fits the strate maintain, the defiting that parts of pressure, and the book hand fitse that the stratements of WOR calls be constrabled by a significant the total biologic strateging the balay has the frequence of the book hand fitse fitse strateging that the strateging the balay has the total biologic strateging that the strateging the bala the strateging the bala by the other strateging the bala balay.



Fig. 2.1 Land based drill rig (from www.howstuffsworks.com)

Defining half as parspect from the surface, sensing them the start payse with the definition of the start payse. It is a single with the start payse of the start payse, the surface start pays and payses the start payses, the start payses are starter for definiting the start payses are starter to definite payses and the start payses and the definition and they be by paysing the starter payses and the definition and the payses the starter to definite payses are paysed in the starter to definite payses are paysed in the starter to definite payses are present take or those onto for well counted.

2.2 Drilling Cost Analysis

Penetrating long distance through underground recks is a costly operation, and the diffing operation cost comprises one of the major expenses in the crude oil production industry. Drilling rate, or called the Rate of Penetration (ROP), is a major indicator to the efficiency of a drilling system. High ROP brought by the technological improvements has grad particular Under the low-crudit-Brilling periodis costs.

Joan van Wijk (2009) in the VARD dolling research group conducted a series of analysis of the ROP influence to the overall dolling operation cost. The operation cost data were collected based on some field oil and gas deling operation reports in NewFoundland. A drilling cost function was entablished.

$$C_s = ((T_{11} + T_{11})^*C_s + C_0)/D_w$$
 (2.1)

In Eqn. 2.1, Variable cost-total variable cost+24/calculated total time

The sensitivity analysis hands in this apparison shows that under nor-shows oil and gas indigen continuis, messaring the KHP final 15 the V-373 subs, with the finals the cost per mater from US M220 to US 5113 to the mining delling case, the reduction could be creat more significant—over indices from US 5220 to US 5120 to US 5120

A major trade off to the cost reduction resulted from high ROP is the heavy bit wear under high ROP drilling conditions. This fast bit wear rate would require more frequent change of the bit, which the increme the bit cont (Finds cont) and the non-potentions into which tripping the bit for replacements. The defiling own mold developed by the VARD stars (Van Wig, 2009) has found that during an shore oil and and diffiling operation, while 100% increme of any potentizion time, the defiling control of an even diffiling includuagies double to exhaust based on both of there two factors (LOP and bit ward). Manager Odamese, 2009) comments that 20% increme in ROP is a minimum target for two diffine thereboxes.

2.3 Factors Affecting the ROP in a Rotary Drilling System

The following few sections will discuss the factors affecting the rate of penetration, which is erucial to the overall drilling cost.

2.3.1 Drill Bit

Classified by the rock breakage mechanism (Bourgoyne, et al., 1991), two types of drill bits are widely applied in the oil and gas drilling industry: the drag bit, and the roller bit (Fig. 2.2).

As shown in Fig. 2.2, a nitter bit has 22 to 4 miling come with merrel tork. The tork impact into the rock during the mation of the role this. The rocks were mainly broken by procession impacts them boths. Materr (1985) and Yang and Giorg (1997) caunited the exact rock breakage mechanism during the hit torth impact. Their finding showed that with fixed pose pressure, not findaur mode tork to transferm from britle to propodentic (Materr, 1996) and they are directly on the direct posetion of the state of th



Fig. 2.2 Drill bits for oil and gas drilling operations Left: roller bit (from Sandvik) Upper right: PDC bit (Greenberg J., 2010) Lower right: Diamond interconstol corine bit (from sechwav-engineering)

The dapk tooks constants the resk stored with a sensition angle. While the truch is forced is more forward, a more of companies stress storestormist in generating, and this tress communities will examinely taid the resk to full in shore, according to Male's follow entries in some years, as new types of edge him, multip Marieymalline Throndo Company (DPC) and Thread Baller DPC (CHS), new shorehops. These because more twenty approximation Baller DPC (CHS), new shorehops. These because more twenty approximation Baller DPC (CHS) more and the performance empation of the hole to the stress of the stress of the stress of the performance employment that which defines a sensite type of resk. (CAS charder Sale others) with the the three stress of the high the TDPC (CHS) defines SAPC (since The Three to the HIG. The theory in the stress is the TDPC (since HIG) and SAPC (since The Three HIG). a low WOB of 8607 kg (19000 lbs), while the diamond impregnated bit had only 2.43 mh (8 mh) at a WOB of 13590 kg (30000 lbs). The roller bit performed the lowest ROP of only 1.37 mh (4.5 mh), while drilling at a very high WOB of 18120 kg (40000 lbs).

2.3.2 Operation Parameters

The following parameters are the factors that could be controlled froming the field string systems to optimize during performance: WOR, bit many pend, drilling hydrodic from and parago of present. Navy researches how each workload the during include how one due to the system of the second strike the between the EOP and home spectrics parameters. The most widely haven model is Manary's drilling model (Manare, 1982), which is eshablished have of perforb home hole during seconds: no how its Tipe 2.2:

$$ROP = K \frac{(W-W_2)^2}{D^2 S^2} N$$
 (2.2)

In this equation, K is a constant which could be determined based on local empirical defiling data; W is the WOR, W₀ is the threshold WOR, which is defined as the minimum bit weight to start the bit pemetration; D is the defil bit diameter for full face bits; N is the bin structure each: S is described as the titrability strength" of the red.

Among the parameters in Eqs. 2.2, the WOB (W) is believed to be the strongest factor affecting the EOP. In Manner's model, the EOP proportionally increases with W, until a critical foundar point, where EOP begins to decline. This decline is caused by two possible reasons: limitation of the deill motor's torepac, or issufficient bottom hole claming. A typical model of the WOB-RPOP relationship is shown in Fig. 2.3.



Fig. 2.3 WOB-ROP plot obtained from the experiment verifying the Maurer's model (Bourzevne Jr. and Millheim 1991)

Another defining presenters aroundly affecting the ROP is the story speed. Its Mater's theory, Gap. 21, bits ROP is proportional to the story speed. However, Contributing the filles concluded that the storage speed. To Rev training out of the affective filles concluded that the storage speed. To Rev training control affective to filles and the storage speed. The Rev training and the approximation per revolution under different confiling presenses, and found that at 5000 pair of confising presenses, that presentative storage and the memory and the storage and the storage and the storage storage and the storage and the storage and the storage storage and the storage and the storage storage and the storage and the storage storage and the storage and the storage storage and the storage



Fig. 2.4 Rotary speed- ROP with and without confining pressure (from Cunningham, 1960)

2.3.3 Rock Properties

In Eqn. 2.2, and the second se

that these rock properties had been mentioned in other publications, the 12 most significant factors for the ROS were selected. Then a statistically calculated number, representing the weight of this factor's influence to the overall deliling performance, was views to use do the other parameters. Steeless are shown in Fig. 2.5.

Rock characteristics	Total weight
Hardness	0.0998
Compressive strength	0.0883
Young's modulus	0.0862
Matrix type and cementation	0.0874
Quartz content	0.0992
Schmit hammer rebound	0.0834
Texture type	0.0682
Density	0.0738
Abrasiveness	0.0855
Weathering	0.077
Grain size and shane	0.075
Tensile strength	0.0733

Fig. 2.5 SRes properties that with their weight of influence to the DOP (Hostinit, 2009) Gatakar and Raynat (1996) investigated the influence of a tock properties that related to ach dishibility. These approximates are hardware, specific distinguistics (related to the vickely and Young's moldane. Their investigations are only driven all that investigation, and the strengt's moldane. Their investigations are only driven all that its ROP is increased and the other three properties. The relationship between the baseless and the opender these properties. The relationship between the baseless and the opender information of the other of the top 2.7 The result of this publication showed that and the new conditions (delited by soft neck bid) ROP endowers with increasing of the roch hardware is also showed at word of the ROP ROP endowers with increasing of the roch hardware is also showed in your of the ROP is software with the results of the share of the roce is software interview. effects similar to the hardness on the ROP. The ROP/ sonic velocity plot gave a similar

trend to the ROP-Hardness plot.





(Gstaider and Raynal, 1996)

Although the deliability research showed many factors potentially affects the ROF, Me most widely applied factor to express the resistance to delling operations from the rock is the suscentified compressive strength (COS). This was mentioned in Manur's interpretation to the 'deliability strength'. Space et al., (1993) also pointed out that the Useonfrond Compressive Strength (COS) and angle of internal fractions are two dominant factors for POE is deviced.

2.4 Drilling with Vibrations

The above section discussed the factors affecting the ROP in a conventional renery adding system. To acquire improvement of the delling performance, non-modern research is focused on optimizing these factors in the entities proxy delling systems. As a should the agroup effective, the many delling systems have been optimized to use a a locel that there are free fundamental variables that can be modified to further improve their performance. Up to its instange, if this housene necessary and valuable to re-examine the proteinment. The fundamental delling mechanism.

Although these technologies have some similarities by combining different levels of vibrations to be rotrary drilling systems, their drilling penetration mechanisms are quite different. The following section will evice these technologies, and the positive and the negative effects the bring.

2.5 Percussive Hammer Drilling

A prevauite human dell system bracks the rock by cartain prevauites inpacts. Depending on where the prevauites humans is installed, the presention dell systems are distalled aim to expose-Top humans and Doos the Hole (2010) humans. The bap humans have their prevauite piasma installad on the urifics. The prevauite energy transmits a long distance through the dell strings to the human the prevent efficiencies are to high, what did strings are long to prevent the second term of the didling approximation. In course, the DTI dim, which are abound to its compatible with down but of the distance of the human term of the difference of the long of the distance of the di

A spixel DTB processive human della assenhb comion of a pixel between two shankens (tapper and lowes), a test of valenes, a percussive della bad (typically between shankens (typically between som ellawarear two test) and a chuck which limits the lim merannes. A DTH dell assenhby is shown in Fig. 23. As described by Wilstey and Fagland (1996) as makanian of this at humaner containt 6 steps of motion. Mostion 1– to paloads by their given and nets on the chuck of the pixets register to accountile in the lower chundres; Massion 2–air pressure drives the pixets to accountile in the lower chundres; Massion 2–air pressure drives the pixets to accountile in the lower chundres; Massion 2–air pressure drives the pixets to more append; Marison 3– upper chundres; Massion 2–air pressure drives the lower chundrer exhanges the massing ang should not 4–accounted accounter; which lower chundrer exhanges the massing ang



Fig. 2.7 Sketch of down hole percussive air hammer (Whitely, 1986)

These series of actions reach is a different rock finiter modulinits, compared with the committeed days behaved entroy definite question which breach the tred by show finite requires the series of the series which definite questions impact, there are proparation, and density are series of the series committees of the series of the series of the series of the series manuface (2). They also maked for modeling trends to methy the series in the series of the series of the series of the series manuface (2). They also maked for modeling (1920), a methy distribution of distribution (2) and the series of the series of the series of the series of the series (2) and (2)
plea taggeted that a sensite future nore which is created by the bh (discil) inspect calls on the compressive norm. Therefore, as least a creation amount or other, matured is caused by smalle falses instand of share falses. A start of the start of the existence of testing falses, flower, the instantion and young FBA. The bostnine of their tarshife fastess, though and the start and flower's and bycomparing the start of the start of the start of the start of the transfer starteneous existing of affecter thanks' and flower's and bycomparing the start of the start of the start of the start of the test starts of the start of the start of the start of the start of the testimes of the starting the rock falses measured and thus, now it reactions are proved the restification start of the researcing of dilling. This is help explain the performance improvements brought by the presensive dilling. This is help explain the performance intervention in these there there there are study of the first start of the start start of the presensive dilling. This is help explain the performance intervention in these birts of the start energy (a lowers) in Fig. 3.3, This implies that presensive dilling is possive made as energy to break, the rock compared to commention starts dilling, sharing means the start falses of the start energy distribution.

Due to the using resk brokkaps mechanism, and the fast thrume presensive still approximate stars also refer methodenable still still price also where the distilling fluid a game thread of ROP intermet could be observed in most field reports which defining mealments that (over 80 MPA) ac(UCS) nocks with DTI presensive humanse. The Theorem 1990 report of 100% intermet of the observed in most field reports ability of the thread and 100% intermet of the observed in a conventional defining systems, which defining gamess with found hulfing fluids. Prort (1997) published some air expressive humanse field results collected in Absters. These presensive humanse field freshed hild study of the web. The definit fluids are antenement on in Fig. 2.5 In this figure, the humane drillings exclude the target depth in the shortest time compared to mal strate part air investory attillings. Tables at al. (1995), constanted seventh hydrogen humanes field tooss in an exploration field in Backkirph, Remain at a depth remped from the 10 1000 m. This hydrodic humanes preformed the highest ROM # 3.16 m & compared with 1.95 and 1.76 m h while defining with a surface drill and a stratey system. It also preformed a larger hild for at an average $d \approx 7.7$ m/we, which is more than 100% higher that the druce three sources (1.4 means H all Strates, respectively).





with tension cutoff

The foregoing sections explained the technological advantage brought by the percussive drills; the next section will discuss the operation parameters of the harmor drills. Commercid to rotary drilling systems, percussive drills have two more factors-the piston impact energy and impact frequency. Meanwhile, because of the change in the drilling mechanism, other parameters, such as WOB, also have a different effect on the drilling performance compared to their functions in the conventional drilling system.



Fig. 2.9 Drill history comparison between air percussive hammer and rotary drill

Jumping Pound area (left) and Clearwater (right) (Finger, 1984)

Possingtion (1932) soundated an in-contraption of the performance of previousle editing band on the top-hanner system. In their multiple impact tests, an inportant compt and the inschange angle source-topole. This bindware angle' studies for the singular rotation between two impacts, and was dominish by the ratio however the rotary queed and the impacts (impacts) (singular per-studies). Promotion (2015) fixed that ary studies between two impacts, and was dominish by the ratio however the rotary queed and the impact fragmenty (singular per-studies). Promotion (2015) fixed that ary studies between the singular per-studies (the singular contrast) fixed the singular the singular space struct volume. Some further at Waldel intercaptions of this intelling dominant of the binary (1984) to considered struct multiple (1985). (wodge impact into specimen with different distances) investigations and made the crater volume as the indication of the efficiency of different indexing distances. He found that the wodge geometry, which is related to the bit geometry design, rock type and properties (distlikhility) are theores affecting the originum indexing distance.

Paunigano (1923) also conduced field trials with the personies humans. High Deed was advaced and net low ON, Julk DPA, and Julk dynamic personies integents forse level. The indexing ratio also affected field defining performance. The optimized ratio between without field and the optimized state of the two optimized states between without field of 25 mill percensive humans. That result, cancelland with Harman's manush, suggesting that a without performance with the messary which diffigure additionary atoms including variable frequency will be messary which diffigure additionary for the final state.

Laprace at al. (2002) presented some field remult showing how the WO B #352 sho which delling with precursive humaness. In their test, the dubler world is WO B ± 2.52 sm (5 Kbs) is two minuses intervals. A due in their test, the dWO B ± 2.55 sm (5 Kbs) is two minuses intervals. A due sus in Fig. 2.10. They also reported huld be subworld duples of the Mbs. The application of the subworld and the test within WO B waves and 5 kb Kbs, which we we is kbs) where a beam maximum WOB word up to 1.15 sm (10 Kbs). The optimized WOB is such a low value was explained are varianticle WOB concelsses of impress energy to the circling for (20,33). Subset recommendations could be found in many precursive humane duffing publications which involved anders of the WOB. Permittyne (155)) stand that 'to advantage was runnified with a dynamic force (therings precursion).



percussion force, bit would be forced to keep contact with rock and no actual percussion

007075

Fig. 2.10 Real-Time drilling data showing WOB affecting the instantaneous ROP

(Lagreca, 2002)

Finger (1984) however, pointed that the ROP is loss sensitive to the WOB, compared to the impact energy, which could be varied by adjusting the hummer's supply pressure. In Fig. 2.11, he presented a WOB openning sewslep which included the variation of the percansion hummer supply pressure. This encodep clearly showed that when doubling the supply air pressure from 125 pair 0.275 g/s. (2006) interasted by 100% to 2007. Merawiki increasing the WOB from 2.25 ton to 9 ton (5 Klbs to 20 Klbs) only resulted in a 50% increase of the ROP.

The review of promotive defining, from the control and instrumentations aspect. It is come up with finite-site groommadiations to acquire high net of potentiation, a relaterality bill (compared to constrained adding optimized WOS with same accused and bit), combined with high impact functionary is recommended. The indexing phenomena should also be notioned. To optimize the historing attribution protocy speed ratio), an experimental based and is successful for accumpt optic of recipitation.



Fig. 2.11 WOB-ROP envelope showing the hammer supply pressure plays a dominant

role (Finger, 1984)

2.6 Vibration Assisted Rotary Drilling

The sum Vientin Anisof Rearg Dulling (vARD) studies for a technology which hence a volution source care the oil line of a row word will open to, no where a higher net of potentiation than for metry dulling. Compared to the widely total persussive adding, only a few vibration assisted addings goatema have been developed for next, the studies of the adding studies. The studies adding the studies are less than been carried out turin dell his vibration and go thus. Even or metales the lives of publications were found regarding the vibration assisted routery delling: however, performance improvements were found which indicate the potentiat of this technology and the disclosing actions, near VARD years how studies due for the proper and vibration mechanisms will be reviewed, including the instrumentation studie, effect of equations in the libration of the studies of the instruction studies.

2.6.1 Resonant Sonic Drilling

A VARD appuratus called ResonantSonic drilling has been introduced (Mood et al., 1995) and tested in the US DOI. (US Department of Energy) Handford Size and Sandia National laboratory insci 1991. This system was absigned to dill subsurince materials for corring, manineering or remediation wells, and has a similar scale to the correctnional cohor total dilling curbe (table) to fill and loose the drill strings and achieve prestraintion by two frequency percussion) which is normally used to drill shallow surface wells. A sketch of a





Fig. 21.7 South Chilling immunational and technology (from South Sourp Dhilling Boll). The constitut mechanism of this vehencing generator in to true true more power between the synchronized antitation is constrained mechanism. This merrors non between the vehencing in the vehecing which we have the synchronized source and in trajectories, while, whereas we generated and transmitted antitioner during in the vertical direction. Vehencing frequency could be address to the source and the second start for the synchronized start and the force could be accounted to a large value. Because of their function, this vehecing generator is also called "possioner". The DDE resport much the the exclusive could be due for force the 2023 (SOM) biol. 1023 (SOM) biols. In the subwrifers dvillings, this resonance energy wave will cause the soil particles summoning the bit to loss structure and become "thicknet", than reducing the resistance to the bit prestruction. By adding this structure instrumentation to a conventional network will bit of, three different penetration mechanisms, including theme (by the reducine), displacement (by resonant), and facture (by presentation), depending on the type of famulation penetration.

This resonance dell system was field sound from 1991 to 1994 in Handerl and Smith, During here operations, velocial beginness were varied from the 1950 Hz. Velocia measures from verse varied from 2020 NG (NERs) is 40.00 KEN), a 40.00 KEN),

During the test in Handerd, senic drilling performed an average ROP of 7.26m/day (23.9 ft/day) on soil formations, compared to the cable tool drilling at 3.8m/day (12.6 ft/day) without coating the flui line franc (operation time without protectation). Some advantages were also observed in core continuity and sample quality especiality on hard reck formations during the coring operations by souit drilling.

After several years of development, sonic drilling technology has become a matter and popular technology in surface' shallow dayds drilling for many civil applications. Although it could not be directly used in oil and gas drilling due to the compatibility issue and no sufficient power could be transmitted through the long drilling triring. the

26

advantages of adding bit vibration to the large- scale rotary rock drilling systems has been demonstrated.

2.6.2 Surface Mechanical Vibrator and Offshore Sampler

Eakin et al. (1995) reported this surface mechanical vibrator devices to further demonstrate the potential of providing vibrations to neck drilling systems from the surface. As opposed to measure sonic addition, no resonance effects were mentioned. The objectives of these systems were to increase drill-string vibrations, therefore increasing the neuror discretual the drill that, we will be drill resoference.

A stark of the arthur mechanism denotes above in these as Fig. 2.13. Similar to the same defining, the velocation of this device is also created by repeative restring of two mechanisms and second transmission and the strengt two neurons sequently power the subdanced masses. A strength of the strengt two neurons sequently power the subdanced mass and his metasion, only one more in subjectual to power the systems. The capacity of this spectra is a strength of the strengt was able to be the systems and the strength of the strength of the strength on the strength of absorption of the interaction of the strength of the

Another similar vibration deiling device reported by Eskin (1995) is the mechanical vibrator offshore sampler (Fig. 214). The system has the same unbalanced mass vibration mechanism and as well it uses one single motor to power bit rotation and vibration. Ore facts to take notice of in subs ofd offshee use systems do not have any device to provide a high level of static drilling pressure. This suggests that for those shallow depth operations with no sufficient feed pressure, such vibration drilling is an ideal solution.









Eskin, et al., 1995)

2.6.3 Electro-Magnetostriction Vibratory Drill

Magnetoniction is a phonemers in which the shape and the dimension of a magnetoniction material changes who is phone lines a magnetonic field. Boyd and Drahd (1993) developed a VADD synthe based on this meanism for the groupset of improving the rate of penetration while defiling in deep well depths. It was developed to be compatible with the down-based assumbly of a conventional many drifting system. A shoch of the coverts is shown in Fig.2.15.



Fig.2.15 Magnetostriction based vibration rotary drilling system (Wise et al., 1958)

The vibrary unit was placed beautin the colin:. There was a section of mechanical vibration dampers between the vibration unit and the coline to prevent the vibrations from transmitting to the quest-full straight. The data for any label of straight by both vibration column. The vibrativy unit was donigned to be capable of straining the severe alows-hole questions conditions toling presence and high temperature; It was also straining enough to withand the high training filter can also all colongenizes on thereind strates. A mud pipe traveled through the vibratory unit and conventional mud based drilling could be achieved.

The vibration unit was powered by an alterning current genome to cooled a the sufficeto power the restored of the way down on the vibrar cant. This where the mean staressentially a magnetisativity tops of transformer, supplying 100 KW of destinitial energy for the vibrars. With alternative theory and the star star and the starmetisative transformer and the star star and the star star and the star magnetisative and the charge in its start ling (shown and relapsed) with the charge of engages. Each storage theory, base alterning stal starsseld motions while his was on the totage of storage.

One example result showed that the maximum force was halved when vibration frequency increased from 80 Hz to 320 Hz, while the ROP maintained constant, As an and entity, each twitten we struct on, the bit has an administed models of the struct beam of the struct we have been been bit in presence of the structure force (2014) and a structure bit has models as insplicit any produced, reading in force parameters of the bit on the vibration characteristics implicitly and influences? and the attack WOII. The presenting of the bit werk contact time in inpulsive force and influence and the WOII. The presenting of the bit werk contact time in a structure and the attack from reaches in maximum values. Which we take from is have reading to the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure time in the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the structure and the structure and the structure structure and the s

In 1986, and 1976, similar magnetistics relations without well the molecules of the test of the second in the USS (Solit and 1, 1993). A fail with velocities alling systems with an MBD-101 velocities and a second in the task 1966. A sheak of this velocities is shown in Fig. 2.15A without works at a fixed frequency of 200 Hz and maximum velocities in Fig. 2.16A without wells are shown with the second seco

ROP increase with roller bits. This implied that the roller bit was less sensitive to the WOB in vibration drillings. The size of the drilling tool assembly was found to be proportional to vibration power, and the optimized bit dimension was 250-300 mm in diameter.



Fig. 2.16 MBS-108 vibration unit (Eskin et al., 1995)

MVS-30 was another magnetostrictive vibrator drill (Fig. 2.17) dosigned for mining field drilling operations in Ukraine. Instantial of trickel, a new type of magnetostrictive material, ferrecoshal alloy 49K2F was used as the essential part of the vibrator. The vibrator works at 1200 Hz with amplitude of 0.6mm. The vibration exciter has 2 meters in length and 90 mm dimeter with a weight of 60 %p.

Laboratory tests were conducted with a roller bit as the drill head. The ROP tested compared to conventional drilling, showed a dramatic increase. While drilling with 16 KW poster and 80 BPM of vibration delling, the ROP was 13.5 and 3.50 envisio, compared with 3.3 and 7.3 emission with respect della gave deflement levels of WOM becaused ROP was 23.6 we 35 mins future than the accurational delling, Admolph high ROPs were dellarlow was 23.6 we 35 mins gave provided to remove any vibration of the vibration delling was much higher COH and 23.7 we for the vibration delling was much higher COH and 23.7 we for the vibration delling with 3.2 and 3.54. We will all conversion delling. This suggests that this is beforein delling used and not have high any efficiency athough much larger amount of emergies was introduced by the deliaded britten.

These types of this (solid), coven and fall faces) were stand during the field triat of the MS550 vibrator. The ROP emperative data showed animaliar result with the behaviors (ROP with vibrations was 2-3 mins higher), a count file forcement of 2-4 mass was obtained their data (file the start) and the start of the

The magnetaristican based vibratin diffing tools were widely applied in the hallow defiling operations such as blast hole, wells and excessing machines in the USSR bowere on number nummatis were length applied for oil and age does well diffing. During many of these field operations, the magnetostriction vibration defiling showed agent advantages compared to committed are one permanoin diffing. The efficiencies compared to airtimal theorem evel 495–495 vibgers.

34



Fig. 2.17 MVS-90 vibrator unit (Eskin et al., 1995)

Chapter 3

Experimental Setup

3.1 Introduction

The objective of the present meanch was to enablish an early stage VARD offling experimental system including hasic contents for most delling parameters and vibrations mere the bit based on existing facilitatis. After the systems was ashibled the defined of the vibrations and other delling variables was studied. Preliminary results through these investigations will provide implications for the development of more sophisticated VARD exterimental facilities.

This VARD experimental rig was built up based on an electric motor coring doll. A vibration table was mounted on the stand and provides vibrations beneath the sample. Modifications to the electronic diff were done in order to have better control of some parameters, and various sensors were applied on the rig to measure valuable delilling and vibration variables.

3.2 Vibration Velocity Source

A VP-31 electromagnetic shaker table from Systems Division was chosen as the basis of the vibration velocity source. This shaker table is designed to softle bulk materials or mix comment efficiently in wer and muddy conditions. It also has a suitable size to be installed on the drill stand. For these advantages, it has been adopted and a series of studies to evaluate its performance were carried out. The detect and a photo of the VPS1 shaker table are shown in Fig. 3.1. An electromagnetic vibrator is fitted at the bottom of a 0.54 m=0.54 m=0.047 m sparse plate. Four vibration dumpers constrained the plate to the minimum solution of the plate table minimum solution of the plate table minimum solution of the current input, which is proportional to the mechanical vibration power, could be controlled by a know on the committee.



Fig. 3.1 Syntron VP-51 shaker table

The payload capacity of the chosen shaker was 125 kg. The frequency was found to be fixed at 60 Hz, regardless of virianis haid and different current inputs, based on the LVDT and necelerometer data captured during the investigations of the shaker vibration discutativitis. The details of these investigations will be presented in Section 3.7.2.

3.3 Rotary Drill System

The essential component of this VARD experimental facility is a 2¹¹ retary coving drill. The drill is powered by a Milwaukee 4079 electric drill motor which has two levels of retary speeds (300 and 600 RPM) provided by a mechanical gearbox. The motor is contexted to an annexer as an indicator of the matter back. A water intri is located between the child hadh and the moter, the inite water pipe paids the defining fluid to that dott blue. The dott moster two-shang as linear gave rail via so small gave wheth each the dott blue these are consented to its gave wheth, and the dott pressure (WOR) could be applied through the handles har by human hand. A fifthering dott is in contrasted to the rail Boson ais the finandation of the whole sprune. The Milwankier more and the initial dire game on those has 12, p.2.



Fig. 3.2 Millwaukee motor and initial drill rig setup

3.4 Modifications to the laboratory VARD testing system

3.4.1 WOB System

As shown in Fig. 3.2, the deil thrue is generated by human hand through the hundle bur. Abbough this is sufficient for assential coning drilling operations, it has inadequate control for research purposes, especially when the WOB has significant influence on the rate of penetration. For this renon, modifications to the handle burb became necessary.

The solution was to install a solid and where with supported weights at the total instal of the handle has, which provides constant retaining of frame and solide WOR. Instity, and a solution of the solution of the solution of the solution of the solution experimental data showing the west range of the WOR for this hold ing, the wheth is dought to be capable to provide the sometime true to be related. The solution was developed, A20⁻¹ Storley short was short able to a slight weight structure and light weight structures are modifications were these on their is could be field to the and light weight structures grant in the halo were taken on their is could be field to the and light weight structures. Some modifications were these on their is could be field to the structure of the handles beam. The experimental strup is this strap is shorts in Fig. 3.



Fig. 3.3 Initial design of the side wheel providing constant WOB with two levels of

diameters



Fig. 3.4 Drill rig installed with a bike wheel to provide constant WOB

Defining experiments were combarded to test the defit sign durit the multifications. The WOB provided by the supported weights stand to risk most 35 kgs. At studi of EOP incommon catals descripted and the maximum supported weight of 16 kgs. All weights, at BOP advances was advanced. The supported weight was converted that the fact and the VGB weight stands. The supported weight was converted that the converted WOB weight stands that Six and advanced that the later and the converted WOB weight stands and 55 kg at 10 kg. The ant of protections was remoted by a 6 kd space. Two levels of anony space, DOB RPM and not BPM was reas advanced by the description and the description of the stand stands. The BOPWOP corvers in shows in Fig. 35, indicating the the ROP incomend of the XD at a sinder ment with two set of entry sensels. There are 2000 for the shows read at XD at W 2000.

Suspended weight (kg)	Actual weight (kg)	Travel time (s)		Bit travel (cm)		Rate of Penetration (cm/s)	
		300 RPM	600 RPM	300 RPM	600 RPM	300 RPM	600 RPM
1.02	55.3	58.7	20.4	4.027	4.207	0.059	0.206
1.22	60.5	31.3	17.5	4.043	4.184	0.129	0.239
1.64	71.5	25.6	13.9	4.01	4.137	0.157	0.298
2.55	95.1	20.3	13	4.258	4.014	0.210	0.309
2.76	100.6	42.5	13.8	3.871	4.185	0.091	0.303

Table 3.1 Drilling data during the test run with the constant WOB system



Fig. 3.5 WOB-ROP curve during the test run of modification to provide constant WOB

During the car rans, some problems seen fannd with this bisk well adopt, First, Honsen of the minich speed with cirk (...). Stable to seen give run we with real 44.3 Jack can before the suspeaded weight tauch the ground. Steends stress driving sectored in the connections between the which hole shot the bads. This results is a contained in the stress of the stress of the stress the stress of the stress of the problem, firstlewed weight ad stress of the stress o resulted in small conversion factors between the suspended weight and the actual WOB, thus increasing the precision of the WOB control.

3.4.2 Installation and Modification of the Vibration Table

The size of the VP-51 vibration table fined well to the bottom stand of the dill rig. The shaker finner was fixed to the dell stand by 5 C-change. Physicod path were placed between the connecting surfaces of the shaker and the dill stand to isolate the vibrations transmitted from the baker to the dill stand.

As can be seen from Fig.3.6, the final design includes a sets of brackets designed to firmly fix the sample on the top of the shaker plates. Stots were made on the brackets to provide flexibility so the geometry and the position of the samples. A clump binds the read-concrete sample tightly to the bracket thus resisting rotation and lateral movements during the diffuse.



Fig. 3.6 Brackets design and final product to hold the sample

3.4.3 Environmental Protection

The drilling fluids flush the drilling detritus at a flow rate of 3-4 US gpm. The outflow which contains drilling particles needed to be treated in a proper way to maintain the lab environment.

Two phases of modifications were carried out to deal with the drilling mud outflow which contained drilling particles. In the first design, a plastic servers is monated on the drill stand. All connections between the shale, the drill stand and the splashing cereen are sealed by water proof solicon. Focus metallic pans were placed at the bottom and the drill mod out flow was apided into one of the game. Accur panse up these of in this pan. We proper spectrum procedures, this way could guide the adiug surface to a same bar from Core-Tower well access reveals weak substances to spectrum num for the shear. The re-install and adjustment of the shears and the summers have become extremely difficult for the spectrum. To economic file initiation, a $1.52 \text{ m} \cdot 12 \text{ m$

3.4.4 Modification and Coupling for the Full Face Bit Experiments

The Milwaukee 4079 drill is designed for coring bits. However, some experiments required drilling using a full face bit.

The full first is his how not chosen was a XPJ andrad, diamodal imperpared by knowledby Bhat Chargen. The bits as at 1 to this split all the visit 1 58 solid diameter carting surface and a 1 38 solid by 5 downled roughing. During the orientig bit experiments, using mode sharps. Thus wholly not could be more server while solidard to all fines bit due to the bit sus infilted with the bit share infilted to the solid diameter of the diameter of t

3.5 DAQ- System

VARD dolling performance could be affected by the rotary drilling parameters and vibration variables. To further study these parameters, several sensors were applied to the VARD experimental system. To capture the analog signals from the sensors, data acquisition systems (DAQ) are needed. Alone with the VARD experiments, 2 DAQvortem were used—tabies and Micro Strain.

3.5.1 NI DAQ-System

All and/or gingth from the sensors wave collected florough a PCH 60301 data acquisition board from National Instruments. The board has a maximum fingunary of 20 KSAS, which has been finde the low-trained with the scoling data of 2-1KS-1mgs. This is the major range, for the VARD sensors measuring variables to adequarkly capture the 60 Hz vibrationa. A CD-64LP 100 contexturb and a paired with the PCI basel (contexted by a RR666 cdbt). The board has 15 mdm [approxal of Z-fgdal ICOs.

NI provides two DAQ- unbiase for this system -Labview and Signal Express. Labview provides a platfamm to graphically program the input signal. Signal Express is a simplified two most of the Labview. It monitors and records the signals with a signary sharp, and forsponsey setup. Functions such as filter, count, or clear effort could be solected from the mesm. The file sospitor could be served in .evv format and could be further analyzed by exect and multitude.

3.5.2 Micro Strain Wireless DAQ-system

Attempts to examine the drill rig's axial force by a load cell encountered difficulties with the NI DAQ-system due mostly to signal to noise ratio. Attempts to filtering were also unsuccessful since both the noise and the force signal were predominantly at 60 Hz.

A better solution was the SG Link wireless transmitter which consists of a Micro-Strain USB brase station, the SG-Link wireless transmitter and Agile-Link software. The whole system is specifically designed for strain gauges and Whentonen bridge type load cells. Integrated in the transmitter sode, there are functions to amplify the signal and make adjustments to blaute the bridge.

3.6 Sensors

3.6.1 LVDT

The Linear Variable Differential Transformer (VDT) is a busin and popular senses to invising some primary winding, excited by AC voltage, and two secondary windings connected to the output angle at the two ends ($\Omega_{\rm E}$ > 1.7). A start of more than the coeld voltage is the excited rate associated to the excited transformer of the transformer influence output and the transformer of the transformer of the transformer singler complexity of the start of the transformer of the transformer singler complexity of the start of the transformer of the transformer of the transformer singler complexity of the start of the transformer of the transformer of the transformer singler complexity of the start to measure the voltation amplitude. This LVDT has a larger receipt (2) are



Fig. 3.7 General LVDT assembly (from National Instruments)

As shown in Fig. 3.7, some the primary soli of UXDT masks to be excited by the human gamma, the mass of gradient laws have been shownhand. At UXDT downhalk provides excitation vultages with a given entries frequency (smally 5 MHz), and extents the significant on the steps signal of the UXDT. In the VMDs experiminal stars, the works from UXDT or imposite with a Howayed Durb 2 downhalman, which requires vultage imposite of 15.8 V, and steps in sOPDC. The LVDT and signal conditioner are shown for 15.8 N.



Fig. 3.8 GHSA 750-250 LVDT mounted on VARD setup (left) and DLD-V signal conditioner (right)

The LVDT was calibrated and the calibration curve is shown in Fig. 3.9. The metal pin of the LVDT traveled 11 mm in its linear range. With a 3.14V offset, the calibration factor was found to be 0.618 mm/V, which had been verified avenut times across different periods during the experiment.

Also the calibrations works are completed, the UND's use monoid an the VADR (e) at the data changes of also points of horthe states' structures. The height of the UNT could be algored by non-positioning man. During the vibration measurements, the sampling fragmencies over variab horteness 206 (900 Hz). The data from the LVDT had show the data works at the Hortogeneous dist deviations amplitude could be controlled by the shaker works at the Hortogeneous dist deviations amplitude could be controlled by the shaker works at the Hortogeneous dist deviations amplitude could be controlled by the shaker works at the Hortogeneous dist deviation.



Fig. 3.9 Calibration curve of the GHSA 750-250 LVDT in its linear range

3.6.2 Load Cell

The WOB is general non-philling systems is a start frare which would be colubated in the weight of obligation, howevery trees proop of firsts, such bock hold. However, for vibration mainted entry defiling, the dwarf force average on the bit is a combinition of the dynamic vibration fitnes and the stark hoad because lists in distance and both from diregalizes in bother that dwellows characteristics, manumer fits that force doring the vibration because a valuable measurement for the VADD experimental stafes.

In the VARD laboratory setup, a load cell was planned to be placed between the dell motor and dell shaft. The panelae load cell was thought to be an ideal option for such location because of its low predict shape and good water resistance performance. The panelae load cell is essentially a full arm Whentsteine bridge strain gauge based force transdocer. The inner structure of the panelae load cell is shown in Fig. 310. Strain gaps are mouthed in a symmetric angle (19⁴ to horizontal direction) is priors on the inner well of parameter load on The score range of the protocle load off in fact by the to inner well and a structure of the load of all mobilities the load. Boccurs of the first attracts at both other, durat armin occurs in the thic constructions where the strucgarges are attached. The share armins of the inner well hand to extension is one strutt and the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure in gaps into a Whandance the data (tructure of the structure) and and the structure of the Whandance the data (tructure of the structure) and the structure of t



Fig. 3.10 Inner structure of pancake load cell

(left: from Pierson; right: from Honeywell)



Fig. 3.11 Full bridge strain gauges load cell (from allaboutcircuits.com)

Range of from measurement is a densitive factor while selecting load erfs. After the WOB control system was completed, the static land us was measured by a commencial static He WOB are finded mapping them 2.5 as go 1.55 kg which the sampenda winglier also fitted from 0 to 6 kg, which will be the manupart of the static WOB in the last V23kg and the sample static last the sample static last static WOB are static static last static last static last static last static last static static last static last static last static last static last static static last static last static last static last static last static last be 90 kb 90 kg. A paneake static filt from Heary 2017;1-13 with the lowest establish converts V34 Net find has been studied from;

Two coupling pieces were made to mount the load cell on the drill. The water way was designed to be guided across the load cell so that force measurements with the account of drilling fluid effects could be conducted as well. A plantic shell was made at the kop coupling piece so that the wireless node and the battery set could be mounted on this shell. The fanal load cell main shown is FL3. 21.2.



Fig.3.12 Load cell and its mounting unit

(left: with the bosing and node and plastic housing; right: initial status when the coupling units were finished and assembled)

The load cell was calibrated by a survo controllad compressive loading machine. The load cell was connected by the wireless DAO-system during the calibration. A relationship between the force values and the digital readings from the Agile-link software was exploited with good intensity. The calibration curve is shown in Fig. 3. 3.


Losd coll calibration chart

Fig.3.13 Calibration curve of load cell with wireless transmitter

The load cell was then used for confirmation vibration tests. The setup during these tests was similar to actual deilling, however bit rotations were not involved. The vibration forces were recorded at multiple levels of shaker current input and static WOB. The results with dedication of inscrime 37.3.

3.6.3 Rotary Encoder

A rotary encoder is an ideal sensor to record linear movements, and it was introduced to the delift system to monitor the linear motion of the bit. In this way the ROP could be recorded during deliling. A rotary encoder consists of a rotating disk with two colds tracks on it. An optical light sensor fixen the track and reads the code. With the disk rotation, the optical sensor generates a pulse signal with very one unit code possing it. For 'quadrature' type encoders, the disk has two coded tracks with 90° cot of phase. These two tracks are recorded by two light sensors working on separate channels, Fig. 3.14 describes the principle of a strate rencoder. In this figure, the two code tracks generate two groups of signals (in channel A and channel B). The direction of the retation could be detected by recognitizing which channel it the though gings (just).



Fig. 3.1.4 Principle of Quadrates many encoder (From National Instruments) The NI DAQ E-6024 DAQ-band has a counting function designed for neuropercoher-Dating the study, doc damed A is contexted in a severe inper', selences channel H is connected to a 'GP_UP_Dense' pin. The DAQ- system will count the signal polars from channel A, and a shigh' low sitesment will be generated from channel H, thus stelling the direction of the mation.

A Nikon RXA 1000-22-1 rotary encoder was modified and mounted on the rig. It has a resolution of (92) readings for each revolution of its rotation. An alloy disk with a size of 6.3 cm in diameter was fixed with the encoder shaft. Thus a precision of 152 digital points per continueter could be realized by the encoder while tracking down the linear bit movement. The encoder was mounted on the rig by a bracket. The alloy disc rotates against the deill stand to recend the linear movement. To increase the firstions, a nubber ring was embedded on the edge of the alloy wheel, and a sandpaper strip was attached on the frame for the same neurose. The step of the rotary encoder is shown in Fig. 3.15.



Fig. 3.15 Nikon RXA rotary encoder mounted on the VARD drill rig

The narry moder was involved in the VARD test matter 600 FRV andhurs. The bit test makes committing using a bite local of valuation defining was researched. Doing the total safe committing using a bite local of valuation defining was researched. Doing a strategier of the strategier of the strategier is the strategier of the strategier and the strategier of the strategier of the strategier of the strategier and the strategier of the strategi The slide issue has become a major barricade in the measurement of ROP by the rotary encoder. As more measurements were done, mechanical groups accumulated on the rubber ring, and resulted in stronger slips. The rotary encoder setup was eventually superinded informance efforts.

For this reason, at the current stage, the ROP was alternatively averaged by the bit penetration distance over the penetrating time. The distance was measured by ruler after each drilling run, and the penetrating time was recended by a stop watch.



Fig. 3.16 Comparisons of the rotary encoder signal during 'good runs' (left) and runs with

sliding issues (right) under low level of vibration VARD drilling

3.7 Drilling System Capacities

In the VADD laberatory step, the YOB and vibration amplitudes were indired; controlled. The attent static WOB was transmitted from the supposhed weight brought of the shorth and gase web-states which we were short to be the shart control setting and they were also influenced by the baseler means. To track down the statul values of these variables, the relationships between the counter parameters (weighted weight and attack created setting gas and the state state parameters) were also been associated at the state of the state state parameters are WOB, shalare vibration displacement amplitude or fitners variations amplitude) model to be statisticaled.

3.7.1 Suspended Weight to Static WOB Conversion

To obtain some genord like of the stand WOB hereb, a dismette weight sole was ploted hereiven the hit and the shifter. The suspended weight was varied from 0 kg to 2 kg and the strading wave since from the sole site steps geno. During the texts, the entire drill services was released at a twind alitence to the bottom service (tracks). The scale readings are found allocids on only by the suspended weight, ben at the "finite highly," which stands for the queue borseness their and the data, when the whether was released by human hand. The influence of this falling height was so aroung that minor variation reacts in a High flowarding of their state random, Ahrer realing ing to fixe, the first, whether wave control their state random. After realing the brief, the brief, which waves controll their state random. After realing the brief, the brief, which was essentially the trace states the first material state initial's two brief. The fulling shipping indicates on the scale random gas are investigated at later and was finded to be a constitution of the state full choices on and gass which and the gass ratil, and the deformation of the shafer merities prior modulo from both the deformation of the matter gains and the line channess supporting it. The solution was used in the state of the full for several seconds. The solutions for supporting its the solution was the state at the breach dot matched both effects in the solution state that the solution of the breach dot modulo both effects in the solution state with the land off, good repentitelity was advanted by the solution for support of the solution of backgrounds to merculate.

The result of the scale measurements were averaged from 3-4 tests per suspended weight. The suspended weight to actual WOB conversion is shown in Fig. 3.17. The data has showed acceptable linearity.



Fig. 3.17 Suspended weight to WOB conversion from the scale test

The load cell introduced in Section 3.6.2 was used to study the suspended weight—WOB conversion relationship for better accuracy compared to the scale. The conversion curve recorded by the load cell is shown in Fig. 3.18. Because the load cell was placed between the bit and the motor, the result shown in Fig.3.17 is an edited result by adding the weight of the corine bit which was beneath the shaker.



Fig. 3.13 Supended weight to W00 conversion methods from the load off the result short source and dimension is built to short and the interrupt of the conversion curst. These differences could be stratisticated to the method fields and the error from both means of measurement (using) from could; The data asquired from the load of the biffered to be more reflective, because it was could be flowed as the method by DAQ-computer instant of the human cyst: The empirical conversion again advanced from the load of the subset of the bit term terms that.

3.7.2 Study of the Vibration Displacement Amplitude

In the user instruction manual of the Syntron VP-51 shaker, little information about the vibration performance was mentioned, except generally stating that the system has a fixed frequency and the control is related to the vibration amplitude. Studies were needed to investigate the vibration characteristics in detail under various load and the shaker control settings.

The LVDT in Section 3.6.1 was used to measure the displacement amplitude at the shaker surface. In the shaker controller, 6 levels of shaker control settings were marked from '10' to '60'. The term 'shaker control setting' is defined as the position of the knob on the controller, and its used as a control parameter during the design of the VARD experiments.

During the vhation amplitude measurement, the bit was ploted in a pre-Solida amplisation contains, the superhald weights was wearing than 11 § to 4 kg. The shafter was intradion for 20 seconds for and toot. The LVDT signal was larged by the NS Signal Express DAQ software at a sampling frequency of 1 Bits. Most of the data presented was the two simulated wave ferms, although several data points acquired at high level of shafter control assing presented as small scenario of amplitude wave merged from 10 points to existence and the result of amplitude waves were present from 10 point to point waves manhouly chosen than the LVDT signal files. The LVDT method displacement wavefirm 1s. Since noder various embinations of WORs and shafter control astings are presented in Appendix A. The amplitude versus the shafter control estimation.

Fig. 3.19 showed a trend that the vibration amplitudes rise with increasing shaker control settings. No perfect linear trend was observed but the amplitude-shaker control settings at 4 levels of WOB are similar. The influence of the WOB is obvious for the amplitude. Fig. 3.29 protocol data influence in a new direct view of websites are piloted as piloted as galaxies for NOL. The direct works that are the second local of whethin, the direct results are strained by the state of the second local data in the second local data with the second local data with



Fig. 3.19 Vibration amplitude measured by LVDT with increasing levels of shaker

control settings without drilling

The LVDT text has shown some general trend in shaker vibration characteristics. However, it was hard to establish empirical models between WOB, shaker control settings, and the amplitude based on the result in Fig. 3.19 and 3.20. No curve fitting could be done because of the strong variation of the shape of the curves. For this reason, the search for another physical variable, which is independent of the shaker load and could only be affected by the shaker control setting, was conducted.





64



Fig. 3.21 3-D plot of Displacement amplitude dependent to static WOB and shaker

control settings

3.7.3 Study of the Vibration Force Variation Amplitude

The force generated by the shaker during the vibration could be a potential variable relevant to the controller but independent of the shaker load. With this speculation, the Honeywell load cell wass introduced to measure the vibration forces. The setup of the vibration force texts was similar to the text with the LVDT—the bit was placed in a predifield sample and the balance is small can also taken within the similar to the similar to the similar to the text with the the vibration.

The data was recorded by the Agile-link software at a frequency of 512 Hz. The signal was then analyzed in the similar method as the LVDT tests. A secondary peak could be observed in all load cell signals when the force reduces from the maximum peak. This was possibly be caused by the gar when match effect or the vibration mechanism inside the shaker motor. The force waveforms measured by the load cell are given in Appendix B.

The force amplitudes versus the WOM under 3 bench of sharer control setting are plotted in Fig. 3.22. The figure shows that the force amplitude was clearly influenced by the polytok, opecitylic WoWOM were block with Skie WOM, Bay Elseware, with the proplasd over 60 kg, the force amplitudes were not significantly influenced by the poyload anymore. Compared to the displacement amplitudes WOM corese assumed by the LVDT in Fig. 3.26, the short of the resemption cores was not be more consistent.

The level of the force amplitudes is a variable which deserves consideration— it varied from 1500 N to 25000 N. The said studie WORI, on the other hand, were varied only from 300 N to 10000 N. By taking account of the studie WORI, the result from this investigation suggested that the instantaneous axial threat force could reach to maximum of 2500 N.

The third valuable parameter in the load cell tooling results is the mean value of the threat force in the axial direction. In Fig. 3.23, the mean value of each condition was calculated and presented in the form of mean force vs. shaker control settings under variable levels of WOB. The mean force value was found remained approximately constant at all shaker control settings.

66









(Note that '0' in shaker control setting stands for no vibration)

The indian equivale is Section 3.12 and 3.23 assumption to available inferionflying between the shall are considering and the virtual validities. Attraptive to exhibit harding fit equations user made, that the surface waves finand to be complicated and so makels 2-30 factosism users finand to achieve a strange of the st

Chapter 4

VARD Experiments on Coring Bit

4.1 Objective

The objective of conducting the VARD coring bit experiments was to test run the VARD rig, evaluate the influence of the added vibration on the penetration rate, and provide preliminary results for later investigations and experiment plans.

4.2 Verification of VARD Technology

Shorly diffe experimental using was completed, a VABD test run was consisted of voly the performance integretorism through the photod volution. These or not was planned to be a dimensionless run, and the time required to trans each each 1 on was recorded. The WOB model and a a relatively have been (i.e. as 3 kg, housed on the experiments from the photod run (i.g. provide) and the state of the state of the state of the test and the origination target particular the state of the state parameter postentian to the run relatively have state (WOB. The test was replicated once to ensure the volutions' of the data.

The drilling renth is presented in Fig. 4.1. In this figure, bit need distance vs. time was plotted. The test started with conventional netwy drilling. After several continueters of trues, dr. addres water and an util voltations we included in the result initial drilling. A direct change in slope of the travel time curve implied inspressed performance brought by the addres voltavitation. An increasence, from 0.81 mm/s to 1.2 mm/s in ROP occurred while introducing the voltations.



Fig. 4.1 Verification test showing the ROP increment brought by the VARD drilling

4.3 Sample Preparation

For the VADD orients bits true, the samples were propared using commercial duckness 1004 (a ready mix with ensmon and aggroups per-mixed), which is capter in halding on handling in a share prioring. The priority and the samples are properly stifted to improve sample consistency. The sirved mix was mixed with ware, these proprovively adult with 3 lines and pound into "e" optimized models using waters, these day that samples waters and the mixed mixed mixed waters and the day that samples waters and the samples are sample from the UCS torting machine. Five samples were treated and the sample strength was reaged from 17 MaYs to 22 MaYs in its restrict. All experiments were finded within 44 hours after the first samples was defined, in used to guarantee that the rests were not afficiently by the intensming sample trength, the samples ware propared to be for the so of of experiments and difference for strare reads.

4.4 300RPM Coring Bit VARD Test

4.4.1 Procedure

A photo of the VARD experimental setup at this stage is shown in Fig. 4.2. During these experiments, splash screens were mounted, and the vibrations were fixed at three levels which are shaker control setting '10', '30' and '50'.



Fig. 4.2 VARD assembly in the condition for the coring drilling experiments

The 300 RPM round of experiments were conducted in November 2009. For each test run the bit travel ranged from 45 mm to 75 mm. The ROP data was computed from the distance the bit traveled. The flow condition was maintained by keeping the same turn angle of the faucet on the water inlet. The flow was visually controlled to ensure that the concentration of the detritus in the out flow was small.

The experiment attack with the strays defining without whethin, then the shared was land on and the vhethin was varied for 3 levels of shaker ensuted strating. The WeB is the tens was varied the Schwig Ein WeB without the strain strain strain straymers between makendy arranged is order to limit the influence of source natural truths (e.g. bit ware, superstrates fluctuations). For each vhemistic WeB was consumered. This reduction suggested that the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WeB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed with the WOB had parend the fourdure point optimized WOB is addressed on the WOB had parend the fourdure was support.

4.4.2 Experiment Result

The data of the 300 BPM VADD operations are shown are Table 4.1, the WOBRADP narrow ander training levels of vibration sholard sensing are plotted in Fig. 43. The WOBADP shows the short of the short of the short of the short of WOBADP short (basepton, et al., 1991). The ROP more with increasing WOB until the fiscalar point, and then begues to makes. One first to motice is that through the sharp of the WOBADP of more can with a ago and match to the through the point with the maximum ROP does not shared for the executional WOB. More data points more the maximum ROP adoes not shared for the execut funder WOB. More data points more the maximum ROP and to be found during the reperiments in acquire the exect value of the founder write. In Fig. 5.3, the VADD celling method in higher RON than the conversional arrays the figure short face users for RON First Access with low and abdit lowford of valuation, the inclination portion of the WOB-BOP earness showed a similar shape to the conventional network shifting cares. Which shows allowed portions, VADD celling references a result are processional journess all networks with increasing valuations for the inclination portions of the VABC curves und to be downer, and the ROP subscript related orders with BOP.

The VARD WORK-ROP results with abiliar control settings 11% and 20% resulted in proportional ROP increase. The WORR-ROP relationships in shaker control setting 20% was an exception. The Test's with the shaker control setting 20% velocities and while 54 by WOR and cohmical a high ROP shakes in a 3.1 ann. However, when the WOR increased to 63 kg, a stong ROP relations was constanted. The network will be water and the shaker and the shaker control setting verse is constantiated at 41 kg. This implied that the fitned wWOR water fits shaker control setting '20 beam of More Tells.



Fig. 4.3 WOB- ROP plot at 300 RPM with and without vibrations

Shaker vibration level	Static WOB (kg)	Bit travel (cm)	Time (s)	Rate of Penetration (cm/s)
No-Vibration	45.646	5.4	90.665	0.060
	104.516	3.95	36.879	0.107
	129.746	4.8	39.541	0.121
	66.671	5.5	69.172	0.080
	146.566	5.65	64.619	0.087
Shaker control setting '10'	66.671	5.1	56.548	0.090
	104.516	5.26	45.175	0.116
	45.646	5.2832	74.83	0.071
	110.5712	4.6	34.915	0.132
	117.131	7.55	58.715	0.129
	129.746	4.5	37.149	0.121

	66.671	5.44	45.093	0.121
Chalum anatoria	87.696	4.615	33.552	0.138
setting '30'	45.646	4.9	49.277	0.099
	96.106	6.805	49.032	0.139
	112.926	4.85	36.909	0.131
	66.671	7.0	64.459	0.109
Shaker control setting '50'	45.646	6.63	51.734	0.128
	41.441	4.55	46.39	0.098
	58.261	6.9	61.334	0.112

Table 4.1 VARD experimental coring bit drilling data with 3008PM rotary speed The tests were stopped at this point for the executive vibration resulted in strong bit wobbils. The 4 data points under high level of vibration mechanical power showed that the WOB-8:OP curve stranded at very low WOB, compared to the other two WOB-8:OP curve spenetrad to lower vibration power.

As neutrinoid earlier, before the WOB-000° curves reach the finaler point, they truft to have a proportional slope to the dublater control settings. To further demonstrate this proportional truth, adjusted line ROP data is point at 455 kg WOB were repleted with the rising shaker control settings in Fig. 4.4. Only level of WOB data was selected because at this WOB all data points are below or at the foundar point. These data showed a close to linear reflectings with thereasing shafter control settings.





vibration

4.5 600RPM Coring bit VARD Test

4.5.1 Procedure

In only 2016, a parage of VABD experiments was conclused of the bills by teel (600 EVM) supports. The support parameters was prepared in the sum procedure as shown 300 EVM experiments and the tasks was adars cattered or at the γ^{-0} day after preparation. Based on the operations of the previous (000 EVM) experiments, the highest benefit was an underse as the task between, the quartity of the analysis was prepared with the same markets as the 2000 EVM tests. Encourse sampless wave plasmad to the defiled are more datage paratine cata (000 EVM) exercise sampless wave plasmad to the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) exercises (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket of the care tasket paratine tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket of the care tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) and the defiled are more tasket of the care tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) and the care tasket paratine tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) and the care tasket paratine cata (000 EVM) and the care tasket paratine ta the peak. The WOB was increased in sequence. After obtaining a reduction in ROP, more drillings with small variations of WOB were done near the peak of the WOB-ROB curves.

4.5.2 Experiment Results

The experimental data are shown in 1546 + 23 and the WOLROW corres with and about exhibitions are briefly red. In this first, a data this discuss the first are obtained by paring could be found in all three duiling curves (model at whit net effects), for drilling with and wholes, Than inglik and handle duile could be increased at the strength council and the strength count of the discussion of the discussion of the council and discussion and the final discussion of the discussion of the council and discussions and the final discussion of the discussion of the council hore than 100 PMM.

Shaker vibration level	Actual Static WOB (kg)	Bit travel (cm)	Time (s)	Rate of Penetration (cm/s)
	45.646	5.85	43.774	0.134
	66.671	5.85	34.133	0.171
	87.696	4.62	21.185	0.218
No-Vibration	112.926	5.9	23.852	0.247
	121.336	6.45	25.397	0.254
	123.018	7.12	25.303	0.281
	124.7	5.69	19.266	0.295
	126.382	5.73	20.28	0.283
Shaker control setting '30'	45.9824	5.69	26.941	0.211
	66.671	5.95	25.241	0.236
	72.558	5.65	19.016	0.297
	74.24	5.25	16.723	0.314
	75.922	4.95	16.442	0.301
	79.286	5.35	18.86	0.284
	87.696	5.95	23.744	0.251
	45.646	5,49	23.4	0.235
	52.374	5.35	20.936	0.256
Shaker control	54.056	5.11	18.985	0.269
setting '50'	55.738	6.8	26.941	0.252
	60.784	5.5	22.791	0.241
	62.466	5.48	22.074	0.248

Table 4.2 VARD experimental coring bit drilling data with 600RPM rotary speed

The phenomena fund daring the VLRD experiments were rarely mentioned in other experimental based delling stations. However, some vides WOB-BOC experiments and the spectral station of the stational station of the WOB-BOC experiments and the spectral station of the stational station of the stationary is always as and the path. An example dowing the imperfaction of the environment of the MOM experiment based mean fund theory station of the station of the path of the stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary distribution of the stationary always and the stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary always stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary always stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary always stationary stationary stationary stationary stationary always stationary stationary. The stationary st



Fig. 4.5 WOB- ROP plot at 600 RPM with and without vibrations

The three red circles mark the points that the slopes of WOB-ROP curves began to change



Fig. 4.6 Example of other coring bit drilling experiments at high RPM for 3 different diamond coring bit types (from Ersoy and Waller, 1995)

Other than the down entrolling dynamous, the 600 EFM VADD experiment results, we find the 8 winnin in 6 to 300 EFAS. With add dynamis, the ErO for the indicat parties were higher than the ROP without vibration the under same WOR. Compared to the 300 EFAS models, the 600 EFA carrow sente also "compensation" and they have before and storey alongs. The WOR carrow with address control adding 30°, which was the higher benefit of the vibration in 600 EFAS stores, have a down along along with the higher benefits and the store of the store out address and the store with the higher benefit of the vibration in 600 EFAS stores, have above and storey are storey alonger without (higher at control address 30° and 30° AFAS the curves we strongly comproved and the maximum ROP was hove compared to those reserve with low refer of of chemisms. This implies that for these experiments at substrictly high level whenking the WORKOP converse set standard for some sames. Furthermore, this instructions happened at lower level of vherations if the combination of the "uppingle" starts drilling parameters could result in high ROP (the cample, the doubled restary queed brenght as antibulard to two reasons: the WORKOP records. This "substration" could be antibulard to two reasons: the instRIFC encound, but webbing thought by the increased vheration for the Grantege or increased bit webbing thought by the increased vheration for the full face. Sub modifications to the drill finame wave as well carried out when the full face bit was immedual in the VARD experiments to intrit the bit webbing motions during the drilling as motioned in the VARD experiments to intrit the bit webbing motions during the drilling as motioned in the VARD or parameters.

This saturation phenomenon suggests that the operation window of the added vibration could be dependent on the combination of the original retury defiling parameters. If the combination of rotary defiling parameters already resulted is a welatively high ROP, the benefit brough the mded whenism would then be limited.

Chapter 5

Investigation of the Effect of the Drilling Fluid on Drilling Performance

5.1 Introduction

During the courts bit experiments, diffing fluid wata controlled by usingly fluid parfield ref. that wange trees when do helds. The percendent was thought to be cause and interact: Previously dnew was so study dnew to incredigate the fluor effects to the diffing performance based on the VADD diffing sponse. It was auknows whether the diffing link was sufficient to meet the requirement of the bottom hale changing and how it influences the diffing performance. Therefore, none investigations were emalected attiming to ginh hasis knowledge of the fluor effect on diff performance, and persoluting argorithms for fluor difficult equations. There diffing that interactions mer disapped and conducted based to the centry but which was used in the VADD origin by experiment described its Capper 4.

Drilling fluids here several positive effects on a drilling system. The two findaments drilling fluids have more of the contention are to protect the bit fluids there are also the same fluids the contention generated during the drilling to senser the bit is also yet, is contact with fluids root starface. The fundament during the drilling to the drilling fluid could be adopted by adding additions for drilling response, for example, bit stormers the well hore stability or preventing the loss of conclusion for well counted memory and stormers and starface. During the VADD behaviory experiment, only abulate below ware defined on short concrete samples, and as complex down hole issues existed. For this reases, the only approxement in the during that was sourt, and the during burdenion related to the during performance in the rate of permutation appear is the beams hole cleaning effects. The issuefficient bruch hole cleaning could lead to durints accutation at the beam hole concasts granding burses the bit and durints. Thus will subsequently related the context area between the bit and during the same and the during efficiency. According to Boragyne 24, et al. (1991), the similfactor beam hole endings in our of the maximum Addition 42009.

Abhough the defining fluid is exacile the definiting systems, its presence also brings invelved new relation of the definition of the strength of the definition of the definition of the strength of the strength of the definition of the definition of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the definition of the strength of the definition of the strength of the st

$$WOB_{True} = WOB_{Static} - F_B = WOB_{Static} - A_{Po} \Delta P_B$$
 5.1

In equation 5.1, WOB_{math} is the static WOB determined by drill string weight, hook load and buoyancy force from the mud column in the well bore; F_B is the pump off force; A_{P_B} is the effective pump off area; ΔP_B is the pressure drop across bit. A drill off test example (Bourgoyne Jr., et al., 1991) showed that at the depth of 5747 m with an 8.5 in. diamond bit and a surface pump rate of 258 US galainin, the pump off force reached to 44903 N (4582 kg), comparing to the static WOB at 7,000 kg. The dotailed calculation of the pump off force in a Aqueedia D.

The above discussion above the purpose of force is a factor which significantly efficient to field a dealing operations. In the energy be VADM between yorks, the dealing field aboves the dealing performance is a slightly different way. The min difference bareau factor way systems are in the location of the purpos of first stating on the diffuse states. As shown in the [3, 1, 3, case and different bills in list space between the rock core and the inner wolf of cares based. This bads to an accumulation of the different fields in the open the end of the core to have p and of the core bared, the purpose of first works in a stating at the out of the core to have, the purpose of first coreaus, the purpose of the core to have place at the balls of the another place to coreaus, during any off. This constant difference based by the to theorem (right of r(2, 1), a discussion down.

Although these two types of deilling methods have some differences is their pump-off mechanisms, the factors affecting the doiling performances are quite similar – the flow rate affects the bottom hole cleaning efficiency, while the high pump off force balances the scenal WOB.





5.2 Experimental Setup for the Coring Bit Drilling Fluid Study

The lack of adding that haveledge abreging the previous studies we mushly attributed to the lack, of appropriate monitoring exployeness to the latter flow. To obtain basis detection of the state flash flow rate and pump of pressure were considered to be necessary: the flow rate is the most relevant flow role before his between his locating effects, while the pump off pressure is a direct inclusion of the pump off force.

To monitor these two parameters, a turbine flow meter with digital readings and a pressure gauge were installed to the drill rig. Because the options of the flow meters were limited in the market, the turbine flow meter has a best sensitivity of only 1 US gpm. The two gauges were installed at the nearest possible position to the drill bit (Fig. 5.2). During the experiments, the flow rate readings were taken at 1 US gpm increments.



To β_2 . 51 low network pressure gauge installed on the VARD experimental fieldity. Sense basis study of the flow characteristics was careful out affer the gauges were installed. It was found that the maximum flow era from the bit water was (5 G gas). The pressure around the pressure gauge in mainteed under various flow term when the diff bit is studyed; beyond into gauge additional the sense of the sense of the flow of the first two columns of Table 5.1 present the resolution pressure randing under difficunt low erasts. It was flow that there was as pressure rending under the sense rendered to 12 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 12 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 15 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 15 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 15 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 15 for maximum bits of the sense rendered and the sense rendered to 15 for maximum bits of the sense rendered to 15 meV and the sense rendered to inlet inside the core barrel, where the pressure gauge was located, until the flow rate rise up to 3 US gpm.

5.3 Drilling Fluid Flow Investigation Based on Coring Bit Rotary

Drilling Experiments

A set of strong selling experiments was carried out after the above tenus ware down. The det like instancy spread was set to 300 RPM. The weight ends in was kept commuter of 6.1 kg, which is a mult approximation. The warging was up or delited to 2 ca onder ploters the two hegins. This ensured all the deling runs strated with an existing well hore, and the deliting fields was under a similar our flow condition. The deliting that strated a a flow case of 10 kg gas, and interval so the maximum flow energy of 10 kg gas. The processing readings during the delitings were fload to be identical to the static pressure text. Each deliting finds that for 20 seconds. The ROP was recorded and listed in the column 3 of Table 5.1.

Flow rate reading (US gpm)	Pressure gauge reading (psi)	Rate of penetration (cm/s)	Calculated Actual WOB (N)
1	0	0.107	604.073
2	0	0.108	604.073
3	4	0.129	548.222
4	12	0.118	436.478
5	23	0.097	282.821
6	35	0.095	115.227

Table 5.1 Drilling data and drilling fluid readings during the flow investigation

During the experiments, the bottom hole claring effect could be visually observed. At low flow rates, the out flow hald high concentration of fine grained drill cuttings: with increasing flow rate, the concentration reduced and the out flow became class water. Some phone (Fig. 5.3) were taken to show the fine grained drill cutting concentration reduction with increasing flow rate.



Fig. 5.3 Returned flow to the surface with increasing flow rate from 1 US gpm to 6 US

gpm

Fig. 5.4 plotted the rate of penetration as a function of flow rate based on the data presented in Table 5.1. In Fig. 5.4, an increase in ROP from low to middle flow rotes was obtained. The photos in Fig. 5.3 should that from 2.115 area to 3.115 oran flow rates a significant reduction of drilling cutting concentration was observed. This implied that the increases in ROP is the effect of better bottom hole cleaning. However, as soon as the flow rate reached 3 US gpm, the ROP began to reduce. An important sign in Table 5.1 showed that the pressure muse bergs to capture readines at 3 US oren. This indicated that the core barrel was saturated with drilling fluid between 2 US gpm to 3 US gpm, and the back pressure inside the core barrel began to affect the drilling performance. As discussed shows the drilling fluid back pressure in the core drilling could significantly affect the actual WOB. Due to the limitation of axial force measurement, the pump off forces under different flow conditions was converted from the pressure gauge readings by a factor of the inner cross parties of the core harred. Then the actual WOIIs were calculated by the static WOB (brought by the suspended weight) minus the pump off force. The calculated actual WOR is listed in column 4 of Table 5.1. Fig.5.5 plotted this actual WOB aminut the ROP. This curve verifies a tonical WOB-ROP theory which is similar to previous experiments. The reduction of ROP could be understood as the insufficient bottom hole cleaning, which is a major factor cause the reduction of ROP in Maurer's (1967) WOB-ROP empirical model. This theoretically verifies the results obtained during the experiments.


Fig. 3.3 late of epotentiation as a flow time tender of 3.4 kg WOB Sense suggestions are given for future experiments based on the experimence obtained from the dulting flow investigations, in order to uninitize the dulting that illustances. At the current targe, due to the fact that on south WOB can be ensured during dulting, it is important to minimize the influences of the parsy of flows. In order not to strongly during the start that there is the ensure of the first of the bottom bole cleaning effect. With these considering that maximize the lefter of the bottom bole cleaning effect. With these considering that the part of the bottom bole conserves searce realized that that "searce" can be as resources as the real that that the searce of the bottom bole conserves searce realized that that "searce" can be as the searce of the bottom bole



Fig. 5.4 Rate of penetration as a function of actual WOB

Chapter 6

Full Face VARD Experiments

During the oring bit VARD experiment, the path of the WOB/ROP earch was final to startnet of lower WOB with increasing vibration amplitudes. The shortend earch memory is high beyond of vibrations have created difficulties in sthrer analysing the effects of the vibrations at the include portions of WOB/ROP earces. Only one vibration amplitude-ROP earces was plound at the lowest lowed of WOB beauses the path of the MOB/ROP earces with high low of vibrations happend to earcy. However, this amplitude-ROP earces was ploud at the earch path subgenesis to early lower the amplitude-ROP earces with the lower of width subgenesis to early. However, this amplitude-ROP earces with the lower of width subgenesis to early lower early many subscriptions of the the early and it annual interest to their investigate the environment to the ROP.

To further explore the efficit of all levels of valuations on the WOB-ROP corres, by experiments should be conducted using a new dell bit which could understate higher WOB before the peak. To most this requirement, then we bits note the target one target areas, so that the WOB stress on usit bit surface areas is lower. Therefore the full face bit abilits show the function of the single under the same WOR, and reaches in founder most at holds WOB.

A full face diamond impregnated bit (shown in Fig. 6.1) from Boart Longyear was selected for this purpose. This AWJ bit has a diameter of 1 7/8", and it is designed for directional drilling for the oil and gas wells, with good directional stability and durability. Similar to the coring bit, the full face bit is also a diamond impregnated bit, including

three water channels and three nozzles.



Fig. 6.1 Photo of the AWJ full face bit purchased from Boartlongyear inc.

6.1 Preparation of the Sample

The samples dolled is the VARD experiments reached strongth of 20 MPs, which was relatively low compared to most reds encountered in the oil and gas diffing. During the diffing experiments, these 20 MPs samples were found to be only to fracture, and small aggregates occasionally fiell off from the well hore near the surface. Therefore, suprovenents in the accept strongth seem from the botter simulate the representaThe design of the sample mixture was selected from several different combinations. The final product was mixed with cement, and aggregate and water. The ratio was 36.5%, 38.7% and 24.8% respectively. The sample has reached to 50.7 MPa at 28th day after mixture, which was the highest UCS value obtained in this study.

Thirty samples were cast in 12⁻⁻⁻ long, 6⁻⁻⁻ diameter cylinder molds. These samples allowed 120 addiling num of 7.5 cm each. The samples were prepared 2 months before the drilling experiments. At the day of the full face bit drilling test, the samples reached 57 MPA UCS value on servege.

6.2 Conditioning of the Full Face Bit

The new diamond impreguated bit came with a thin layer of coating on the drill lead surface. This layer could ware out shortly after the bit starts drilling. During this wearing progress, the fresh diamond tooth catters ware slowly revealed, followed by changes of the bit surface conditions, which could cause strong fluctuation of the early drilling performance.

To mitigate the influence of this surface coating, a set of Arillings called bit conditioning was carried out. The WOB was kept constant at a relatively low kevel of 64.14 kg, and the flow rate was kept constant with 4.5 psi. The conditioning data is shown in Table 6.1, and the result is plotted in Fig. 62.

During the test, the ROP with the new bit was found extremely low. Compared to the ROP close to 0.08 cm/s with the coring bit under the same condition, the ROP for the full face bit was only 0.003-0.004 cm/s. This was resulted from both the change of the sample

properties and the contact area of the drill bit.

Accumulated Travel (cm)	Travel per run (cm)	Time (s)	Rate of penetration (cm/s)	
0.85	0.85 273.68		3.11×10 ⁻³	
1.75	0.9	356.39	2.528×10 ⁻³	
2.61	0.86	288.22	2.986×10 ⁻³	
3.78	1.17	270.17	4.333×10 ⁻³	
4.71	0.93	264.02	3.523×10 ⁻³	
5.86	1.15	268.00	4.291×10 ⁻³	
7.06	1.2	268.47	4.478×10 ⁻³	
8.31	1.25	262.81	4.771×10 ⁻³	
9.56	1.25	266.89	4.699×10 ⁻³	
10.81	1.25	264.59	4.735×10 ⁻³	
12.06	1.25	263.05	4.752×10 ⁻³	

Table 6.1 Data for the bit conditioning under 2 kg WOB



Fig.6.2 ROP variation with accumulated travel during conditioning

Fig.5.2 showed the purposes of the bit conditioning. Strong ROB Meantation could be found at the first socied delility. The FOO data was promoted is true of increasing with signal and the first socied and the socied of the socied data was also at 0.0047 more far and a 4 on add mass. This suggests the influence of the struction for the struct 4 on add mass. This suggests the influence of the struction far and the increasing structure and the socied data was also finder was structure and the increasing structure and the strucdom structure and the socied data was also structure before and their data conditioning is shown in Fig.5.3. Before the conditioning way pitted dataset was also discussed in the structure and the conditioning way pitte dataset with the advert shown the matching data structure was and the discussed in the structure after the conditioning, the amount counting way gives and the dismost between the He adverts shown the matching structure and the socied dataset was also discuss structure and the socied advectory and the dismost between the discussed structure and the socied advectory and the dismost bacteria structure and the dataset shown the matching data structure and the socied dataset was also structure and the socied dataset structure and t



Fig. 6.3 Bit face before (upper) and after (lower) conditioning

6.3 Conventional Rotary Full Face Bit Experiment

Similar to the procedure of the VARD coring experiments, a set of conventional rotary drilling tests was conducted with the full face bit ahead of the full range VARD experiments, so that the founder WOB could be determined.

The sequence of the experiments was set in such a way as to skowly increase the WOB and record the ROP. If any reduction of ROP was obtained, secretal more tests would be done near this point, in order to verify the result. The delling flow was kept constant for a resource same render of 4.5 psi (10) k(2a) for all delling runs.

The definite binary is shown in Table 8.2, and the WOR-BOOP data pile is presented in Fig. 6.4. Each data point was obtained by letting the bin rate for 7.9 minutes, except some short rans, which we simply of for spectration sinces. The bit true distances for most of the defining rans were only about 1.3 cm, relatively short as compared with 5-7 cm bit travels in the earling experiments. This was because of the externs law rate of potentration which editings with the bits bit.

Because of the multified too sequence, the experiment was not simply when a reduction was advanced. Every invest ReD reductions was constructed, deling was not even exceed at a lower level of WOB. This providers resulted in separated delings under the same WOB for several discuss, during which fluctuations of ROP wheat we denoted which all constructed as the second second second second second second second and the site of the second second



Static WOB (kg)	ic WOB (kg) Time(s) Bit Travel (cm)		ROP (cm/s)	
47.316	923	2.2	2.384×10 ⁻³	
47.316	616	1.3	2.11×10 ⁻³	
47.316	532	0.76	1.428×10 ⁻³	
64.136	1090	3.41	3.128×10 ⁻³	
64.136	825	1.89	2.291×10 ⁻³	
64.136	300	1	3.333×10 ⁻⁵	
64.136	533	1.35	2.529×10 ⁻⁵	
80.956	534	1.55	2.903×10 ⁻⁵	
80.956	542	1.84	3.395×10 ⁻³	
80.956	533	1.55	2.917×10 ⁻³	
80.956	535	1.47	2.75×10 ⁻³	
97.776	533.3	2.25	4.219×10 ⁻³	
97.776	533.6	2.35	4.404×10 ⁻³	
114.596	533.6	2.84	5.322×10 ⁻³	
114.596	533.6	3.35	6.278×10 ⁻³	
131,416	534.3	3.65	6.831×10 ⁻³	
131.416	524	2.7	5.153×10 ⁻³	
131.416	533.4	2.45	4.593×10 ⁻³	
131.416	131,416 240		6.792×10 ⁻³	
148.236	437.1	2.92	6.68×10 ⁻³	
148.236	148.236 337.4		6.965×10 ⁻³	
148.236	148.236 533.3		7.313×10 ⁻³	
165.056	547.2	4.64	8.474×10 ⁻³	
165.056	356.5	3.53	9.902×10 ⁻⁵	
181.876	353.2	4.13	1.169×10 ⁻²	
181.876	235.8	2.35	9.966×10 ⁻³	
181.876	281.1	2.387	8.492×10 ⁻⁵	
198.696	330.3	3.45	1.0445×10 ⁻²	

215.516	270	3.3	1.222×10 ⁻³
215.516	381.2	3.84	1.007×10 ⁻³
232.336	250.3	2.86	1.143×10 ⁻²
249.156	295	3.94	1.336×10 ⁻²
265.976	286	3.89	1.360×10 ⁻³
265.976	230	3.16	1.374×10 ⁻²
265.976	150	2.32	1.547×10 ⁻²
282.796	183	2.62	1.432×10 ⁻²
282.796	245	2.99	1.220×10 ⁻²
282.796	300	3.97	1.323×10 ⁻³
299.616	200	3.06	1.53×10 ⁻⁷
299.616	215	3.17	1.474×10 ⁻⁷
316.436	335.7	5.23	1.558×10 ⁻³

Table 6.2 Drilling data of the full face bit conventional rotary drilling

Alongs the 100° fluctuated to some enterts, an increasing partian of the VODE. EOP dual to the VDD reflection of the VDD. EOP dual to the NDD reflection of the VDD dual the VD-horter fluct ($P_{\rm eA}$) for our for transformation of VDD, horized of the WDD dual to a cost of VDD is WDD dual to the experiments. Up to the local of VDD, horized of dual or cost of VDD is waited with the VDD dual to the VDD dual to the VDD to dual at each VDD is waited with the VDD dual to the VDD to VDD exercised dual at each VDD is waited at the VDD dual to the VDD to VDD exercised dual at each VDD is waited at the VDD to VDD to VDD exercised dual to the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD to VDD exercised dual horizer research on the VDD horizer research

The full face bit rotary drilling results have shown a long inclined perion in the WOB-ROP performance curve. The ROPs at the range of sould WOBs were relatively low, compared to the ROP of the coring bit experiments. Up to the end of the test, the curve was still rising. These results suggest that there were still potentials for this bit to stand bidrer WOB.

These results suggested that this diamond improgramted full face bit was properly chosen for the VARD experiment. Its large bit context surface allows it to sustain high level of bit weight before the limit (optimized WOB). This characteristic made it possible to further investigate the provided of the one data of the WOB exerc.

6.4 Full Face Bit VARD Experiment

The full fiber VARD experiment was designed to involve 6 levels of WOB (from 47 kg to 313 kg utile WOB) and 3 levels of vibrations (from shaker control setting 10^{-5} 59 $^{-1}$). It follows the sequence of increasing the shaker control settings at fixed WOB, then increase the WOB (up to 131 kg WOB) to be limit of the thatec copacity. The duffing opention were strongly. The ROP increase could be clearly shored with rising ROP and shore could variage. Because link fractations were encounted during the tor with increasing values, most data were any defined for one fine, encore for averall field diffigurean with lack of proper and an smooting. For the diffigure runs with proper strongly and the strongly and the strongly and the strongly open strongly and the strongly and the strongly because of the increased dataset the list has rest-of any data trans. For the slighter ROP tasks, because of the increased dataset the list has rest-of any data trans. For the slighter ROP tasks, because of the increased dataset the list has rest-of any data trans. For the slighter ROP tasks, because of the increased dataset the list has rest-of any dataset and the rest or effect of VOB as in the true onsiders of angle quity could be parameted.

The dilling data for the VARD full face that tens is presented in Table 6.3. During theory for the flow was reduced to 2.5 US gpm. This was a compressive to the copyoidy of the disbinger system and appropriate fiftee. The effects of reduced flow could be showned by computing the conventional defiling data between the resents in Table 7.2 and Table 8.3. Def Def Def Network 6.1% gal 1.01 kg how challed down by 0.000 cm/s to 100 cm/s. The UVDT was resonand on the shaker and the shaket and antification of the shake adoing the diffing wave recorded. The recorded displacement wave forms dating diffings are presented in ApproxIC C.

The share violation amplitudes under various locels of WOM and share control settings are plotted in Fig. 6.6 and Fig. 6.7 (3.6) plot1. The LVDT data collected alreing the difficults out with filled the responded filtering compared with the rest presented in Fig. 3.25. In Fig.3.25, the amplitudes were reduced with increasing WOM, and then they tended to be fullement with highler locel of WOMs, in comparison, the result presented in Fig. 6.6 showed that the methods whosh out the the WOM increase of low locel. (before 81 kg static WOB). Then all amplitudes began to climb to some extent with 98 kg 113 kg static WOB, Up to 131 kg of static WOB, the vbrainon amplitudes under all levels of shaker control settings have gathened in a very small region (from 0.14 nm to 0.8 mm, which indicated that the share vbrainon was estimated at 113 kg active WOB.

Statia		Trend	POP	Shaker	Ampliitude
WOR (to)	Time (s)	((am(a)	control	measured by
WOB (kg)		(ciii)	(cms)	settings	LVDT (mm)
47.316	330	0.33	1.0×10 ⁻³	No vibration	0
47.316	360	0.48	1.33×10 ⁻³	10	0.150
47.316	330	0.78	2.364×10 ⁻³	20	0.217
47.316	330	0.96	2.909×10 ⁻³	30	0.306
47.316	330	1.31	3.97×10 ⁻³	40	0.377
47.316	330	1.26	3.818×10 ⁻³	50	0.465
64.136	330	0.44	1.667×10 ⁻³	No vibration	0
64.136	330	1.03	3.121×10 ⁻³	10	0.072
64.136	330	1.29	3.909×10 ⁻³	20	0.150
64.136	330	1.79	5.424×10 ⁻³	30	0.279
64.136	330	2.07	6.273×10 ⁻³	40	0.320
64.136	330	1.99	6.03×10 ⁻³	50	0.340
80.956	330	0.8	2.424×10 ⁻³	No vibration	0
80.956	330	1.53	4.636×10 ⁻³	10	0.060
80.956	330	2.06	6.242×10 ⁻³	20	0.082
80.956	330	2.49	7.545×10 ⁻³	30	0.141
80.956	330	3.04	9.212×10 ⁻³	40	0.175
80.956	330	3	9.091×10 ⁻³	50	0.221
97.776	330	1.1	3.333×10 ⁻³	No vibration	0
97.776	330	1.86	5.636×10 ⁻³	10	0.069
97.776	330	2.49	7.545×10 ⁻³	20	0.010
97.776	330	3.09	9.364×10 ⁻³	30	0.155
97.776	330	3.32	1.007×10 ⁻²	40	0.230
97.776	330	3.5	1.061×10 ⁻²	50	0.290
114.596	330	1.5	4.545×10 ⁻³	No vibration	0
114.596	330	2.42	7.333×10 ⁻³	10	0.091

114.596	330	2.95	8.936×10 ⁻³	20	0.167
114.596	330	3.53	1.068×10 ⁻²	30	0.254
114,596	330	4.21	1.276×10 ⁻²	40	0.269
114.596	330	4.27	1.294×10 ⁻²	50	0.258
131.416	230	1.17	5.087×10 ⁻⁵	No vibration	0
131.416	230	2.05	8.913×10 ⁻⁵	10	0.161
131.416	230	2.25	9.796×10 ⁻³	. 20	0.156
131.416	230	2.65	1.152×10 ⁻²	30	0.170
131.416	230	3.15	1.370×10 ⁻²	40	0.182
131.416	230	3.5	1.522×10 ⁻²	50	0.141

Table 6.3 Drilling data of the full face bit VARD experiments



Fig. 6.4 Actual drilling data distribution with increasing WOB









experiment



Fig. 6.7 3-D Plot of the shaker amplitude during VARD test

This difference was partially smared by the different steps in the two sudies. Competition for non-chilling shalar whention characteristic andres in Chapter 3, the bit rest constraint after was conducing the different fast summaries of the potention. The displacement amplitudes protontic in Appendix A and Appendix C also suggest data data, the advisition of the advisory of the state of the theory performance, to studie that data gets the displant data was been determined by the shalar lack constitute only with emain single field and it. When the papeloar all net weight disfributes and chapted, the bahavier and field and the constituted by the data lack constitute only with emain single field and its Wash the papeloar all net weight disfributes was days data bahavier and the database amplitude conduct and the transformation was days data data and papeloar data and the constitute of the data and the database and the database and field and the database and the database and the database and field and the database For this means, the IRO[®] in the VARDS full face the experimentary large manipultering and the source of the source of the variance of the VROE. Up to this surge, the shalter control sating was found in be the most direct factor describing the mechanical distribution of the shaller of the VROE states of the VROE states of the shalter of the VROE states of the VROE states of the VROE states of the VROE and the shalter control states in Fig. 6.8, and Fig. 6.8

The reach shown in Fig.26 and Fig. 6 is which a milestore in the VARD seconds. In this group of results, the relationship between the added vibrations on the RO was develop vibration. The theore vibrate control string, its model is how humsly increased the ROF in all 6 secons with different WORDs, narray the highest level of vibration, the "position 60", which was found to be not in the linear range of the higher article and the ROF in all 6 secons with different WORDs, notice the highest relation of the ROF and the second string of the relation of the higher article model of the second string of the relation of the second string factor, which responses the level of the dubt worknown energy. The equation is given in Figs. 6.1. The intermedies the soft work stress tensor the ord 322:16².

$$ROP = 9.71 \times 10^{-5} \times WOB + 1.35 \times 10^{-4} P_{e} - 6.49 \times 10^{-3}$$
 (6.1)





levels of vibrations



Fig. 6.9 VARD full face experiment result-ROP as a function of vibration with multiple

levels of WOB

Another results to take notice is that III (§26, b) and adds vibusions on early abilited up the ROP in the WOD-ROP enerse, bind also changed in singer. For example, a comparison thereases the WOD-ROP enerses without withmin and with vibatic control sating 30° vibutions showed that the added vibusions, nonpeads to 35.05 without hittingin. Will find a state control utility 5° vibusions, incompared to 35.05 without hittingin. Will find a state control utility 50° vibusions, the state of the state



Fig. 6.10 3-D ROP surface as a function of static WOB and shaker control settings

Chapter 7

Conclusion and Discussion

7.1 Conclusions

The development of the VARD experimental system stantsd in the fall of 2008. The main assembly with the rig and the vibration table was completed by May, 2009. Since then, modifications were done to most the requirements revealed during the experiments. Some of these modifications are still underway today. Fig. 7.1 shows a comparison of the VARD experiments before and her the development and modifications.



Fig. 12. Comparison of the VARD spin thill, 2006 (cb) and August, 2016 (cb) The VARD experimental facility' in the VARD project, is a simple but sensariate facility. Sum of it is possible using committed and used uses some exists. The simple structure adheses the sensity committed and for necessary measurements. During the later experimental andies, this therearty drilling rig was proved to be realish, and amenand simplificant reads.

The coring bit VARD experiments were carried out from October, 2009 to February, 2010. The added vibrations were found to significantly increase the rate of perstration before the founder WOR, where the WOB-ROP earces began to saturate. Meanwhile high level of vibrations also led to earlier saturation of the WOB-ROP curve, thus leaving little exercision vibration for the WOB.

The full first bit experiments were concluded in order to investigate the relationship between the relation moduli and prevent, that have a formation is written accounting the finader points. The conventional strategy deling experiments showed that the bit works all dening the first papers. The interfaced points of the WOM 2007 eners of first bit was long, and the other points were strategy at the VM 2007 energy of the abstrategy, abstrategy at the VM 2007 energy of the abstrategy, abstrategy at the VM 2007 energy of the the abstrategy, abstrategy at the strategy at the strategy at the abstrategy abstrategy at the strategy at the

Combining the results from both two groups of experiments, the following effects could be concluded: The VARD technology could significantly increase the rate of penetrations compared to rotary drilling under same bit operating conditions. This increment is especially obvious while the WOB is relatively low

The mechanical power of the vibration could affect the shape of the WOB-ROP curve. The higher level of vibration mechanical power could result in steeper inclination and earlier saturation of the WOB-ROP curve.

A similar relationship to the WOB-ROP curve is obtained while the 'shaker control setting', which is proportional to the vibration mechanical power, is plotted against the rate of penetration. The vibration shaker control settings were found to be proportional to the rate of penetration.

7.2 Discussions to the future work

Although significant results were generated based on the VARD experimental facility, limitations were also encountered during the experiments. Followings suggestions in both the experimental setup and the experimental design aspects are given for the future experiments.

Up to now, the vibration factors and amplitudes were measured and plotted against the shaker control settings. However, none of those two variables were found to be independent of the share tood (WOM). The distribution of the vibrations mechanical power may need to be continued. The next possible solution is to measure the current input variably the shaker controller, followed by calculating the electronic power input to the vibration. Basic ratios in the atiling fashic were surdared and resoluted in Chapter 5. The support solution is in the fast fast or constraints of the presence gauge begans to have randage. This was done to bolismic for bolismic fast density efficient of the solutions of the static Wey of the pump off fines. In the faster experiments, if a soluted with home resonance is the chapter and fines can be induced by its is absold to with neuroscitation flow efficient of the maximum fiber enter that the ange provide mellificient bolismic home from efficient and find the maximum fiber enter that can provide mellification bolismic hubbles and find officient of the static s

The read of the VARD experiment investigation is presented in WOB-000 will distance control sensing. HOP enzyes. However, and we use to describe the poferament improvement of a set offining holdnology is to come spectration workspecification of matrixing the correst under corrain spectration conditions. Envelopes and be plotted under varion levels of characteristic and the set of the probab reportion conditions, from externely low levels up on the limitation of the system. The computerion between these envelopes could describe the advantage of the VARD behaviorgy is a smore exast we.

In particular, the present set of studies suggested that future investigations could further concentrate on the search of new vibration variable independent of the shaker payload, improvement of the WOB control systems to balance the param off force and maximize the bottom hole clausing effect, and express the performance improvement brought by the VARD technology to contain quertion envelopes.

Reference

Allaboutcircuits.com, (n.d.), Strain Gauges, Retrieved from http://www.allaboutcircuits.com/vol Uchpt 97.html

Archway-Engineering, (n.d.), Imprognanted Diamond Core Bits, Retrieved from http://www.archway-engineering.com/products/corebits_impreg.html

Black, A.D., Bland,R.G., Curry, D.A., Ledgerwood III, L.W. Robertson, H.A., Judzis, A. 2008, 'Optimization of Doep-Drilling Performance—Benchmark Testing Drives ROP Improvements: For Bits and Drilling Fluids'. *IADCSPE Drilling Conference*, SPE 112731-MS, March 2008.

Bourgoyne Jr, A.T., Millheim, K.K., Chenevert, M.E., and Young Jr, F.S. (1991). Applied Drilling Engineering. Richardson, TX: Society of Petroleum Engineers., pp.200, pp.464

Cunningham, R.A., 1960, 'Laboratory Studies of The Effect of Rotary Speed on Rock-bit Performance and Drilling Cost', Drilling and Production Practice, 1960, API 60-007, March, 1960, pp.7-14.

Ersoy, A. and Waller, M.D., 1995, 'Textural Characterization of Rock', Engineering Geology, 39 (3-4), June, 1995, pp. 123-136.

Eskin, M., Maurer, W.C., Leviant, A. 1995. 'Former-USSR R&D on Novel Drilling Techniques', Maurer Engineering Inc.

Finger, J.T., 1984, 'Investigation of Percussion Drills For Geothermal Application', J. of Petroleum Technology, 36 (12), December 1984, pp.2128-2136.

Fossen, F. (2010). Structural Goology. Cambridge: Cambridge University. pp. 127-130

Groenberg, J., 2010. 'Abrasive Formations, Shale Wells Drive New Bit Designs for Hard-Rock, High Temperature Drilling', Intl. Oil and Gas Conference and Exhibition in China, SPE 132048-MS, June, 2010.

Gstaider, S., Rynal, J. 1966, 'Measurement of Some Mechanical Properties of Rocks and Their Relationship to Rock Drillability', J. of Petroleum Technology, 18 (8), August, 1996, en. 991–996.

Han, G., Bruno, M., 2006, "Percussion Drilling: From Laboratory Tests to Dynamic Modeling", Int. Oil & Gas Conference and Exhibition in China, SPE 140178-MS, December, 2006. Hartman, H.L., 1966, "The Effectiveness of Indexing In Percussion and Rotary Drilling', Int. J. of Rock Mechanics and Mining Sciences & Geomechanics Abstracts, 3 (4), November, 1996, pp. 265-278.

Honeywell, 1995, DLD Series LVDT Demodulators. Retrieved from https://measurementsensors.honeywell.com/ProductDocuments/Manuals/008-0532-00.pdf.

Hoseinie, S.H., Ataei, M., Osanloo, M., 2009, 'A New Classification System for Evaluating Rock Penetrability'. Int. J. of Rock Mechanics & Mining Sciences, 2009(46), res.1329-1340.

Jean van Wijk, 'Exploration Drilling-Market Assessment Research for VARD Tool', 4 May 2009.

Lagreca, A.J., Santana, D.D., Suarez, G., Rodriguez, M., Mclinnes, M.B., 2002, 'Fluid Percession Hammer Field Test in the Alocthonous Cretaceous Block, Eastern Venezuela'. Canadase International Percession Conference, PETSOC 2002-128, June, 2002.

Lundberg, B., Okrouhlik, M., 2001, 'Influence of 3D Effects on The Efficiency of Percussive Rock Drilling'. Int. J. of Impact Engineering, 25 (4), April 2001, pp.345-360.

Maurer, W.C. 1965, 'Bit-Tooth Penetration Under Simulated Borehole Conditions.' Petroleum Transactions'. J. of Petroleum Technology, 17 (12), December, 1965, pp.1433-1442.

Maurer, W.C. Pers. Comn. 2010, Collaborating meeting, Nov, 2010, Austin, Texas.

Maurer, W.C., 1962, 'The "Perfect- Cleaning" Theory of Rotary Drilling'. J. of Petroleuw Technology, 14(11), November, 1962, pp. 1270-1274.

Moad, D., Melellan, G., Wise, J., Barrow, J., Biancosino, D., Write, J., 1995, 'Resonantsonic Dulling--Innovative Technology Summary Report.' US Department of Energy. April, 1995.

National Instruments, (n.d.) Using Quadrature Encoders with E Series DAQ Boards. Retrieved from ftp://ftp.ni.com/pub/devzone/pdf/hut_4623.pdf

National Instruments, 2006, Measuring Position and Displacement with LVDTs, Retrieved from http://zone.ni.com/devzone/cda/tut/prid/3638.

Paul, B. and Gangal, M.D., 1969, "Why Compressive Loads on Drill Bits Produce Tensile Splitting in Rock". Drilling and Rock Mechanics Symposium, SPE 2392-MS, January, 1969. Pennington, J.V., 1953, 'Some Results of DRI Investigations-Rock Failure in Percussion'. Drilling and Production Practice, 1953, API 53-329, November, 1953.

Pierson, J. (n.d.). Load/ Force Cells, Retrieved from http://www.sensorland.com/HowPage005.html

Pratt, C.A., 1989, 'Modifications To and Experience With Air-Percussion Drilling'. Intl. J. of Rock Mechanics and Mining Sciences & Geomechanics Abstracts, 27(4), August, 1990, pp.231.

Rabia, H., 1985, 'A Unified Prediction Model for Percussive and Rotary Drilling'. Mining Science and Technology, 2 (3), June, 1985, pp.207-216.

Sandvik, (2011). Roller Cone Bits. Retrieved from http://www.directindustry.com/prod /sandvik-mining-and-construction/roller-cone-bits-40142-431481.html

Sonic Samp Drill hd., (n.d.). Sonic Dvilling Theory. Retrieved from http://www.sonicsampdrill.com/uploads/08/0623%20Brochure-RotoSonic-How%20dee5/Sc00ft/20work.edf

Spaar, J.R., Ledgersvood, L.W., Christensen, H., Goodman, H., Graff, R.L., Moo, T.J., 1995, 'Formation Compressive Strength Estimates for Predicting Drillability and PDC Bit Selection', SPEJIADC Drilling Conference, API 62-191, February, 1995.

Whiteley, M.C., England, W.P., 1986, "Air Deilling Operations Improved by Percussion-Bit/Hammer-Tool Tandem", SPE Drilling Engineering, SPE 13429-MS, October, 1986, pp. 377-382.

Wise, B.A., Cooper, D.E., Thompson, R.L., 1958, 'Well Drilling System', United States Patent Office, No. 2,858,108.

howstuffworks.com. (n.d.). Oil Rig Systems-How Oil Drilling Works, Retrieved from http://www.howstuffworks.com/environmental/energy/oil-drilling4.htm.

Yang, J.H., Gray, K.E., 1967, 'Single-Blow Bit-Tooth Impact Tests on Saturated Rocks Under Confiring Pressure: II Elevated Pore Pressure'. Society of Petroleum Engineers Journal, December, 1967, pp. 389–408.

Appendix A: Displacement amplitude measured by data



without drilling

LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '10'





LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '20'





LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '40'





LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '50





LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 62 kg WOB, shaker control setting '10'







LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 62 kg WOB, shaker control setting '30'











LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 62 kg WOB, shaker control setting '60'











LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '30'



LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '40'



LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '50'



LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '60'



LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 96 kg WOB, shaker control setting '10'





LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 96 kg WOB, shaker control setting '20'

LVDT measured displacement amplitude at 96 kg WOB, shaker control setting '30'
















drilling





Load cell measured force amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '20'



Load cell measured force amplitude at 46 kg WOB, shaker control setting '30'











Load cell measured force amplitude at 62 kg WOB, shaker control setting '10'





















1006																			
1000	F		-	-	-+	-+	-	+	-	-	+	+	-	-	-		-		-
1206			1.	- Ĥ.	-1	-1		1	- 11		1		1	1.				1.1	
-		-1					- 11					-11	Ш	11.	1	17		1.11	
-		- 11				μ.	цη	-	μ.	μң		нņ		-44	44		44		-
-																-1f	Ħ	V	£.,
-							Υ.,									1	_V.		
- 24	١.									- 1.0				-					-1.44
										-									

Load cell measured force amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '20'

11111		
1111	DAMAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	

Load cell measured force amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting "30"







Load cell measured force amplitude at 79 kg WOB, shaker control setting '50'













Load cell measured force amplitude at 96 kg WOB, shaker control setting '40'



Load cell measured force amplitude at 96 kg WOB, shaker control setting '50'







Load cell measured force amplitude at 113 kg WOB, shaker control setting '20'



Load cell measured force amplitude at 113 kg WOB, shaker control setting '30'







Load cell measured force amplitude at 113 kg WOB, shaker control setting '50

Appendix C: Displacement amplitude measured by data while

drilling











LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 47 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting '30'





· A	1 1	11						7						
1A	AЛ	Π.	11		П		17	17	Π		17			17
			14											1.1-
VV	VV	V	v		÷	¥	¥	V	v	v	V	¥	v	V

LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 47 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "50"



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 64 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting '10'







LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 64 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting '30'





control setting '20'







LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 81 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "10"



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 81 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "20"







LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 81 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "40"











LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 98 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "20"



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 98 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting '30'











control setting '10'



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 115 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "20"



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 115 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "30"











LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 130 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting '10'



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 130 kg WOB during drilling, shaker setting '20'



LVDT measurement of displacement amplitude at 130 kg WOB during drilling, shaker control setting "30"









Appendix D: Calculation of the Pump Off Force During a Drill

Off Test

Diell-off trait is a field aparatise proceeding the baseline despitisation operations promotings. The fondark WHH and the appropring of the cost dash destimation drough disk uses, A provise drift off true bagins by locking the drift mining at the authors with a strong WOR, then start the bit stratures. When his promotions in strength and the incorporation with the stratures. This will must be monitored with WOR and examples are stratures and the stratures and the strength and the strength protocol of the bit strength. As more at the growthesis merge, the bit will be highly growthesis of from the bitments by the gauge aff. Encer, and the WOB inducator at the metface will have WOB conducts be tourned. The following manuality throngourds be, at 1(91) shows the colladation of growth off the tournes.

Elapsed time (min)	WOB Indicator (lbs)	Standpipe Pressure (psi)
0	14,000	2,490
3	13,000	2,490
10	12,000	2,485
15	11,500	2,485
19	11,000	2,485
22	10,500	2,480
30	10,000	2,480
38	9,000	2,475
52	9,000	2,475
(off bottom)	0	1.650

Force at pump off point

Fa=Fao-Foa=9000-0= 9000hs

Pressure drop across bit

ΔPa=Pao.Pos=2475-1650-825psi

Pump off area

Ano=Fn/APa=9000bs/825psi=10.91in2

Standpipe pressure at 14000lbf WOB

Pa=2490esi

Pressure drop across bit at 14000lbf WOB

APa=Pa-Pos=2490-1650-840psi

Pump off force at 14000thf WOB

Fa=Ano× APa=10.9in2×840psi=9164.4lbs

susu

Heng Li_s thesis version 3_5_pdf 04/23/11 08:21 AM









